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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
2022 2021

ASSETS:
Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value (includes pledged asset3, 93,846

and $,506,372 respectively) $ 3,201,214 $ 6,511,095
U.S. Treasury Notes, at fair value (includes pledged asset$6f19 8and $29,74Q respectively) 36,118 37,175
Cash and cash equivalents 214,183 385,143
Restricted cash 66,769 65,299
Accrued interest receivable 10,527 18,859
Derivative assets 262,318 50,786
Receivable for securities sold, pledged to counterparties 13,684 -
Other assets 1,027 320
Total Assets $ 3,805,840 $ 7,068,677
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Repurchase agreements $ 3,133,861 $ 6,244,106
Dividends payable 5,636 11,530
Derivative liabilities 53,013 7,589
Accrued interest payable 4,424 788
Due to affiliates 1,075 1,062
Other liabilities 207,454 35,505
Total Liabilities 3,405,463 6,300,580
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, 8.01par value20,000,000shares authorized; no shares issued

and outstanding as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 = =
Common Stock,$01 par value;100,000,00%6hares authorized35,066,251

shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2022 &58J398,610shares issued

and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 351 354
Additional paid-in capital 776,159 850,497
Accumulated deficit (376,133) (82,754)
Total Stockholders' Equity 400,377 768,097
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 3,805,840 $ 7,068,677

See Notes to Financial Statements



CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.

(Unaudited)

For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021
($ in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021

Interest income $ 112,735 $ 90,279 $ 35,610 $ 34,169
Interest expense (32,196) (5,067) (21,361) (1,570)
Net interest income 80,539 85,212 14,249 32,599
Realized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (132,672) (3,068) (66,143) 2,977
Unrealized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities and

U.S. Treasury Notes (692,781) (107,386) (212,221) (11,239)
Gains on derivative and other hedging instruments 466,394 15,932 184,820 5,375
Net portfolio (loss) income (278,520) (9,310) (79,295) 29,712
Expenses:
Management fees 7,881 5,569 2,616 2,156
Allocated overhead 1,482 1,189 522 390
Incentive compensation 763 884 212 259
Directors' fees and liability insurance 929 874 308 279
Audit, legal and other professional fees 899 832 293 212
Direct REIT operating expenses 2,281 1,024 1,064 309
Other administrative 624 514 203 69
Total expenses 14,859 10,886 5,218 3,674
Net (loss) income $ (293,379)$ (20,196)$ (84,513)$ 26,038
Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share $ 8318 0.95)% (2.40)$ 1.00
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 35,336,702 21,061,154 35,205,888 25,717,469
Dividends declared per common share $ 1.995 $ 2925 % 0.545 $ 0.975

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Unaudited)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

(in thousands)

Additional Retained
Common Stock Paid-in Earnings
Shares Par Value Capital (Deficit) Total
Balances, January 1, 2021 15,215 $ 152 $ 433,133 $ (17,994)$ 415,291
Net loss - - - (29,369) (29,369)
Cash dividends declared - - (17,226) - (17,226)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 3,650 37 96,871 - 96,908
Stock based awards and amortization 18 - 572 - 572
Balances, March 31, 2021 18,883 § 189 $ 513,350 $ (47,363)$ 466,176
Net income - - - (16,865) (16,865)
Cash dividends declared - - (20,416) - (20,416)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 4,617 46 124,700 - 124,746
Stock based awards and amortization - - 180 - 180
Balances, June 30, 2021 23,500 $ 235 $ 617,814 $ (64,228)$ 553,821
Net income - - - 26,038 26,038
Cash dividends declared - - (26,420) - (26,420)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 7,164 71 176,936 - 177,007
Stock based awards and amortization - - 183 - 183
Balances, September 30, 2021 30,664 § 306 $ 768,513 $ (38,190)$ 730,629
Balances, January 1, 2022 35,399 $ 354 $ 850,497 $ (82,754)$ 768,097
Net loss - - - (148,727) (148,727)
Cash dividends declared - - (27,492) - (27,492)
Stock based awards and amortization 25 - 540 - 540
Balances, March 31, 2022 35424 $ 354 $ 823,545 §  (231,481)$ 592,418
Net loss - - - (60,139) (60,139)
Cash dividends declared - - (23,936) - (23,936)
Stock based awards and amortization 2 - 237 - 237
Shares repurchased and retired (175) (1) (2,217) - (2,218)
Balances, June 30, 2022 35251 $ 353 § 797,629 $ (291,620)$ 506,362
Net income - - - (84,513) (84,513)
Cash dividends declared - - (19,231) - (19,231)
Stock based awards and amortization 1 - 143 - 143
Shares repurchased and retired (186) (2) (2,382) - (2,384)
Balances, September 30, 2022 35,066 § 351 § 776,159 $  (376,133)$ 400,377

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021
($ in thousands)

2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (293,379)% (20,196)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Stock based compensation 552 612
Realized losses on mortgage-backed securities 132,672 3,068
Unrealized losses on mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Treasury Notes 692,781 107,386
Realized and unrealized gains on derivative instruments (261,364) (22,180)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable 8,332 (5,449)
Other assets (353) 74
Accrued interest payable 3,636 (404)
Other liabilities 7,770 (2,031)
Due to affiliates 13 303
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 290,660 61,183
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgage-backed securities investments:
Purchases (622,535) (4,816,301)
Sales 2,731,497 2,598,893
Principal repayments 376,169 413,005
Purchases of U.S. Treasury Notes - (37,440)
Net proceeds from (payments on) derivative instruments 246,321 (1,228)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2,731,452 (1,843,071)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreements 32,427,448 22,995,280
Principal payments on repurchase agreements (35,537,693) (21,376,997)
Cash dividends (76,527) (59,019)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs - 398,661
Shares repurchased and retired (4,602) -
Shares withheld from employee stock awards for payment of taxes (228) (299)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,191,602) 1,957,626
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH (169,490) 175,738
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of the period 450,442 299,506
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of the period $ 280,952 § 475,244
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 28,560 $ 5,471
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Securities acquired settled in later period $ -3 180,619

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLANDCAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organizationand BusinessDescription

Orchid IslandCapital, Inc. (“Orchid” or the “Company”’)was incorporatedin Maryland on August 17, 2010 for the
and ppesiicleatinged investment portfolio consisting of residentialmortgage-backedsecurities (“RMBS”). From
HEAMEEMHATOERIA’s initial publicoffering ofits common stock on February 20, 2013, Orchid was a wholly owned
eulpsitdiaxyafademient, Inc. (“Bimini”). Orchid beganoperations on November24, 2010 (the date of commencementof
mwastagloRtigdugh November24, 2010, Orchid’s only activity was the issuanceof common stock to Bimini.

On August 4, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity Distribution
four Agikeempnits)piitiuant to which the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate abhOBAMDGMDF
shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negebietieshs. The Company issued a totabeff38,730shares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for
gross proceeds ofipproximately §50.0million, and i@gsege¢eds of approximatdé¥7$million, after commissions and fees,
its termination in June 2021. prior to

On January 20, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting Agreement”)
MorpathdeRurities LLC (“J.P. Morgan™), relating to the offer andls&R0¢@0Ghares of the Company’s common stock. J.P.
Morgan purchased the shares of the Company’s common stock from the Company pursuant to the January 2021
Wedestweriing $6.00per share. In addition, the Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an
228,000shares of theddBifpahy’s common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on
2021. Thenwhssiad of the offering F88,000shares of the Company’s common stock occurred on January 25, 2021, with
the Company of approximateK5&2millionPHeeestisfiering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with
relatldy MeEgagffer and sale h600,000shares of the Company’s common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of the
Company’s common stock from the Company pursuant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agre2i2fpat $hare. In addition,
the Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an add240u00shares of the Company’s common stock
the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on March 3, 202%. The closing of thelg8&0i08(shares
of the Company’s common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with proceeds to the Company of apprédifiatellicdh, net of
offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution
saledgresmenirsiwrithdauliich the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate aSOO T
shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negetietishs. The Company issued a totaDg¥81,46%hares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate
proceeds of approximatel?$0.0million, and net prgk&@ssds of approximat@i6fmillion, after commissions and fees, prior to
termination in October 2021. its



On October 29, 2021, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “October 2021 Equity Distribution
four Agieeapenits)piituant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate a236uOOODHMdF
shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negetietishs. Through September 30, 2022, the Company issued a taal &, 14Ghares under the October 2021 Equity
Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approxinid@eéwillion, and net proceeds of approximatg®Emillion,
after commissions and fees. No shares were issued under the October 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement during the nine
st September 30, 2022.

Basis of Presentationand Use of Estimates

The accompanyingunaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordancewith accountingprinciples generally
in thecthited States (“GAAP”)for interim financial informationand with the instructionsto Form 10-Qand Article 8 of
R@%Bl@‘ii@gl?;?ﬁey do not includeall of the information and footnotesrequired by GAAP for complete financial statements. In
therepisiennfall adjustments(consistingof normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentationhave been
pbidedg results for the nine andthree month periods ended September30, 2022 are not necessarilyindicative of the results
thgjemrer forthe year ending December31, 2022.

The balance sheet at December31, 2021 has been derived fromthe audited financial statements at that datebut does not
of th&ehdaattionand footnotesrequired by GAAP forcomplete financialstatements. For furtherinformation, refer to the
Staeaeigdts and footnotesthereto includedin the Company’s Annual Reporton Form 10-K for the yearended December31,
2021.

The preparationof financialstatements in conformitywith GAAPrequires management to make estimatesand
the repomydiaansthas affesiets and liabilities and disclosureof contingentassets and liabilitiesat the dateof the financial
shetespoitednshounts of revenues and expensesduring the reporting period. Actualresults coulddiffer from those estimates.
dibaificant estimates affecting theaccompanying financial statements are the fairvalues of RMBSand derivatives.
Meragemeadbediavsamptionsunderlying the financialstatements are reasonablebased on the informationavailable as of
Sepember30,

Common StockReverse Split

On August 30, 2022, the Company effected a 1-for-5 reverse stock split of its common stock and proportionately
numbeerefsedlibeized shares of common stock. All share, per share, deferred stock unit (“DSU”) and performance unit
{nFdZmiation has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the reverse split. The shares of common stock retain a par value of

$8a0d. per
Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”)

The Company obtains interests in VIEs through its investments in mortgage-backed securities. The Company’s
VIEsndesgsisdivehigsaature and are not expected to result in the Company obtaining a controlling financial interest in these
Nithifein Alea result, the Company does not consolidate these VIEs and accounts for these interests in these VIEs as
seerigags-bgekadote 2 for additional information regarding the Company’s investments in mortgage-backed securities.
Shsonairuoss for these VIEs is the carrying value of the mortgage-backed securities.



Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalentsinclude cash on depositwith financialinstitutions and highly liquid investmentswith
thre@nginalsottisitias the time of purchase. Restricted cash includescash pledgedas collateral for repurchaseagreements
BOdotigs, and interestrate swaps and other derivative instruments.

The followingtable providesa reconciliationof cash, cash equivalents,and restrictedcash reportedwithin the statement
positpdrifamneiah to the total of the same suchamounts shownin the statementof cash flows.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2022 December 31,

Cash and cash equivalents $ 214,183 $2021 385,143
Restricted cash 66,769 65,299
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 280,952 $ 450,442

The Companymaintains cash balancesat three banks and excess marginon account with two exchange clearingmembers.
balafttéimas;exceed federallyinsured limits. The Companyhas not experienced any lossesrelated to these balances. The
Prggaik Insurance Corporationinsures eligibleaccounts up to $250,000per depositorat each financialinstitution. Restricted
Bashnces areuninsured, but are heldin separate customer accountsthat are segregated from the general fundsof the
comtrrppliymlBeninsured balances to only large, well-known banks and exchange clearingmembers and believes thatit is
nRYpAsaddRt credit riskon cash andcash equivalentsor restrictedcash balances.

Mortgage-BackedSecurities and U.S. Treasury Notes

The Companyinvests primarilyin mortgage pass-through (“PT”) residentialmortgage backed securities(“RMBS”’) and
morgigatetlizadons (“CMOs”) issued by Freddie Mac,Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae, interest-only (“IO”) securitiesand
(MYRDSY igdeTRstedpresenting interest in or obligations backed by pools of RMBS. The Company refers to RMBS and
RMBS as Bl Company refers to 10 and 11O securities as structured RMBS. The Company also invests in U.S. Treasury
Najesispyivadtatyral requirements of derivative counterparties. The Company has elected to account for its investment in
RMBfraagliry Notes under the fair value option. Electing the fair value option requires the Company to record changes in
thir scatumimt of operations, which, in management’s view, more appropriately reflects the results of the Company’s
pRefeibnséposting period and is consistent with the underlying economics and how the portfolio is managed.

The Companyrecords securitiestransactionson the tradedate. Securitypurchases that have not settled as of the balance
are isle¢gtidain the portfoliobalance withan offsettingliability recorded, whereas securitiessold thathave notsettled as of the
baksactate are removed from the portfoliobalance withan offsettingreceivable recorded.

Fair valueis defined as the pricethat would be received to sell the asset or paid to transferthe liabilityin an orderly
betwitensasiiBtparticipantsat the measurementdate. The fair value measurementassumes that the transaction to sell the
asaedfor the liabilityeither occursin the principalmarket forthe asset or liability, orin the absenceof a principalmarket,
adoarsiptbagnastket for the asset or liability. Estimated fair valuesfor RMBS are based on independentpricing sources
pagiker hisd@akihen available. Estimated fair values for U.S. Treasury Notes are based on quoted prices for identical assets in
agirkets.



Income on PT RMBS and U.S. TreasuryNotes is basedon the statedinterest rate of thesecurity. Premiums or discounts
the qursefipatrchase are not amortized. Premium lostand discountaccretion resulting from monthlyprincipal repayments are
teflesteabigains (losses)on RMBS in the statementsof operations. For 10 securities, the income is accrued based on the
aadyhegsfidaeiveyield. The difference between incomeaccrued and the interestreceived on the securityis characterizedas a
tatwialent and serves to reduce the asset’s carrying value. At each reporting date, the effective yieldis adjusted prospectively
fepdutimeperiods based on the new estimateof prepaymentsand the contractualterms ofthe security. For ITO securities,
ghi¢dtivenitetdcognition calculationsalso take into accountthe index value applicableto the security. Changes in fair value of
BB skt period are recorded in earnings and reportedas unrealizedgains or losses on mortgage-backedsecurities in the
accompanying statements of operations.

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

The Companyuses derivativeand other hedging instrumentsto manage interestrate risk, facilitate asset/liability strategies
managé otherexposures, and it may continue to do so in the future. Theprincipal instruments that the Company has used to
@623ty Note (“T-Note™), federal funds(“Fed Funds”)and Eurodollarfutures contracts, short positionsin U.S. Treasury
seEIsItigpsivistiesis to enter in interest rate swaps (“interestrate swaptions”)and “to-be-announced” (“TBA”) securities
Conspationsbpénher into other derivativeand other hedging instrumentsin the future.

The Companyaccounts forTBA securitiesas derivativeinstruments. Gains and losses associatedwith TBA securities
are réposasiiansain (loss)on derivativeinstruments in the accompanyingstatements of operations.

Derivative and other hedging instrumentsare carried at fair value,and changes in fair valueare recordedin earnings for
The @empari9tderivative financial instruments are not designatedas hedge accounting relationships, but rather are used as
RedBeRVFits portfolioassets and liabilities. Gains and losses on derivatives, except thosethat resultin cash receiptsor
peoldsdsuabperating activities on the statementof cash flows. Cash paymentsand cash receipts from settlementsof
darteatipesivddludiagh settlementson interestrates swaps,are classifiedas an investingactivity on the statementsof cash
flows.

Holding derivativescreates exposureto creditrisk relatedto the potentialfor failure on the partof counterpartiesand
honsxehsingsimitments. In the eventof defaultby a counterparty,the Companymay have difficulty recoveringits collateral
ek apaahents providedfor underthe terms of the agreement. The Company’sderivative agreements require it to post or
tothital to mitigate such risk. In addition, the Companyuses only registered central clearingexchanges and well-established
panKvescédunterparties,monitors positions with individual counterpartiesand adjusts posted collateralas required.

Financial Instruments

The fair value of financialinstruments for which it is practicableto estimate that valueis disclosedeither in the body of
stateilehtsdrdiathe accompanyingnotes. RMBS, Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futurescontracts, interest rate swaps,
inlapsbrfand TBA securities are accountedfor at fair value in thebalance sheets. The methodsand assumptionsused to
oalimaisritigse instrumentsare presentedin Note 12 of the financialstatements.

The estimated fair value of cash andcash equivalents,restricted cash, accruedinterest receivable, receivable for
othesemgticdselt affiliates, repurchase agreements, payable forunsettled securities purchased, accrued interestpayable
tindilthies generally approximatestheir carryingvalues as of September30, 2022 and December31, 2021 dueto the short-
tREIARERA] instruments.



Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances theacquisition of the majorityof its RMBSthrough theuse of repurchaseagreements under
repuiedsies agreements. Repurchase agreements are accounted for as collateralizedfinancing transactions, which are
eafigdatdhgimounts, including accrued interest, as specified in the respectiveagreements.

Manager Compensation

The Companyis externallymanaged by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager” or “Bimini Advisors”),a Maryland
compamigeshliabblétyy-owned subsidiary of Bimini. The Company’smanagement agreement with the Manager provides for
MiagRttefthenanagement fee and reimbursementof certain operating expenses, which are accrued and expensed duringthe
pariokl fhey are earned or incurred. Refer to Note 13 for the terms of the managementagreement.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earningsper share (“EPS”)is calculatedas net incomeor loss attributableto common stockholders divided by the
averigightitber of shares of common stock outstandingduring the period. Diluted EPS is calculatedusing the treasury stock
fdthoElasapplicable, for common stock equivalents, if any. However, thecommon stock equivalents are not includedin
domeUtiRS if the resultis anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Companymay grantequity-based compensationto non-employeemembers ofits Board of Directorsand to the
and exgsloyvesdfigeesManager. Stock-based awards issuedinclude performanceunits, deferredstock units and immediately
¥sBiedon stock awards. Compensationexpense is measured and recognizedfor all stock-basedpayment awardsmade to
avplayipteged directors based on the fair value of theCompany’s commonstock on the date of grant. Compensationexpense
tecognized over eachaward’s respectiveservice periodusing the graded vestingattribution method. The Company doesnot
£5HRIARe rates; but rather, adjusts for forfeituresin the periodsin which they occur.

Income Taxes

Orchid has elected and is organized and operated so as to qualify to be taxed as areal estate investment trust (“REIT”)
Intetiad® dhenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). REITs are generally not subject to federal income tax on their
REbtasableded that they distribute to their stockholders all of their REIT taxable income on an annual basis. A REIT
Toust 9i9ibRIGSREIT taxable income, determined without regard to the deductions for dividends paid and excluding net
gagitabgabther requirements of the Code to retain its tax status.

Orchid assesses the likelihood, based on their technical merit, that uncertain tax positions will be sustained upon
baseekemibetiagts, circumstances and information available at the end of each period. All of Orchid’s tax positions are
HPEPIEeehitt There is no accrual for any tax, interest or penalties related to Orchid’s tax position assessment. The
mRasuaeNeRt Pdsitions is adjusted when new information is available, or when an event occurs that requires a change.



Recent AccountingPronouncements

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020R@#e¥ence Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of
Reform on Financial ReportihgASU 2020-04 prétdtiesegiBast expedients and exceptions to GAAP requirements for
on debt instruments, leases, Hé‘?ﬂizﬁ@%@%d other contracts, related to the expected market transition from the London
OfshanRate (“LIBOR™), and certain other floating rate benchmark indices, or collectively, IBORs, to alternative
pefeoc0degrsitesalySednsiders contract modifications related to reference rate reform to be an event that does not require
£OMEASirement at the modification date nor a reassessment of a previous accounting determination. The guidance in ASU
3P804 ahd may be elected over time, through December 31, 2022, as reference rate reform activities occur. The
balinpanjiclagsmodn of this ASU will have a material impact on its financial statements.

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 202 1Rféfence Rate Reform (Topic 8%8 ASU 2021-01 expands the scope of
848 to include all affected derivatives and give market participants the ability to a@dpfy certain aspects of the contract
mbidisabionnaiih expedients to derivative contracts affected by the discounting transition. In addition, ASU 2021-01 adds
implementation guidance to permit a company to apply certain optional expedients to modifications of interest rate indexes
usebieing, discounting or contract price alignment of certain derivatives as a result of reference rate reform initiatives and
8ptesssl expedients to account for a derivative contract modified as a continuation of the existing contract and to continue
hedgenting when certain critical terms of a hedging relationship change to modifications made as part of the discounting
watdatieain WSU 2021-01 is effective immediately and available generally through December 31, 2022, as reference rate

sefvities occur. The Company does not believe the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on its financial
statements.

NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES AND U.S. TREASURY NOTES

The followingtable presentsthe Company’sRMBS portfolioas of September30, 2022 and
December31, 2021:

(in thousands)

September 30, 2022 December 31,

Pass-Through RMBS Certificates: 2021
Fixed-rate Mortgages $ 3,150,403 $ 6,298,189
Total Pass-Through Certificates 3,150,403 6,298,189
Structured RMBS Certificates:
Interest-Only Securities 50,274 210,382
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 537 2,524
Total Structured RMBS Certificates 50,811 212,906
Total $ 3,201,214 $ 6,511,095

As of September30, 2022 and December31, 2021, the Companyheld U.S. Treasury Notes with a fairvalue of  36.1
millappaoxatediibion, respectively, primarilyto satisfy collateral requirements of one ofits derivativecounterparties.

The followingtable is asummary ofthe Company’snet gain (loss) fromthe sale of RMBS for the nine months ended

202B5eptepabdr 30,

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021
Proceeds from sales of RMBS $ 2,731,497 $ 2,598,893
Carrying value of RMBS sold (2,864,169) (2,601,961)
Net (loss) gain on sales of RMBS $ (132,672)% (3,068)
Gross gain on sales of RMBS $ 2,705 $ 7,866
Gross loss on sales of RMBS (135,377) (10,934)
Net (loss) gain on sales of RMBS $ (132,672)$ (3,068)
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NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Companypledges certainof its RMBSas collateralunder repurchaseagreements with financialinstitutions. Interest
gendigilly figed based on prevailingrates correspondingto the termsof the borrowings,and interestis generally paid at the
BordRARen@TtHe fair value of the pledged securitiesdeclines, lenders will typicallyrequire theCompany to post additional
dolatdsaleswimpsto re-establishagreed uponcollateral requirements, referred to as "margincalls." Similarly, if the fair value
oddheiitedgedeases, lenders may releasecollateral back to theCompany. As of September 30, 2022, the Companyhad met all
regidiamelts.

As of September30, 2022 and December31, 2021, the Company’s repurchase agreements had remainingmaturities as
belossmmarized

(8 in thousands)
OVERNIGHTBETWEEN 2 BETWEEN 31 GREATER
(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAR

September 30, 2022
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ -$ 1,731,976 $ 1,413,061 $ 61,316 $ 3,206,353
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ -$ 1,707,215 8 1,372,870 $ 53,776 $ 3,133,861
Net weighted average borrowing rate - 2.96% 3.07% 2.84% 3.00%
December 31, 2021
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ - % 4,624396 % 1,848,080 $ 52,699 $ 6,525,175
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ - $ 4,403,182 8% 1,789,327 $ 51,597 $ 6,244,106
Net weighted average borrowing rate - 0.15% 0.13% 0.15% 0.15%

1) Includes repurchase agreements with outstanding principal balances of approxini®@IynSillion as of September 30, 2022, with
rates indexed to Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) that reprice daily. interest

In addition, cash pledged to counterparties for repurchase agreements was approxim@tdinfilion and%7.3 million as of
September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

If, during the term of a repurchaseagreement, a lender files for bankruptcy, the Company mightexperience difficulty
pledigsdussingivshich couldresult inan unsecuredclaim againstthe lender for the differencebetween theamount loanedto
BlaGarepsstiue to the counterpartyand the fairvalue of thecollateral pledged to such lender, including the accrued interest
serPbablposted by the Company as collateral. At September30, 2022, the Companyhad an aggregateamount atrisk (the
gefiericetheamount loanedto the Company, including interest payable and securities posted by the counterparty (if any), and
thafeisf securitiesand cash pledged (if any), including accrued interest on such securities)with all counterpartiesof ~ 117.4
ARPEORIMEElY S mpany did nothave an amountat risk withany individual counterpartythat was greater than 10% of the
&lcapeenilseeqoity022 and December3 1, 2021.
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NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE AND OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The table below summarizesfair value information about the Company’s derivativeand other hedging

liabiligb3upesttSigsaimded30, 2022 and December31, 2021.

(in thousands)

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

Balance Sheet Location

September 30, 2022 December 31,

Assets 2021

Interest rate swaps Derivative assets, at fair value  $§ 169,630 $ 29,293
Payer swaptions (long positions) Derivative assets, at fair value 91,195 21,493
Interest rate caps Derivative assets, at fair value 1,188 -
TBA securities Derivative assets, at fair value 305 -
Total derivative assets, at fair value $ 262,318 $ 50,786
Liabilities

Interest rate swaps Derivative liabilities, at fair value $ -3 2,862
Payer swaptions (short positions) Derivative liabilities, at fair value 52,315 4,423
TBA securities Derivative liabilities, at fair value 698 304
Total derivative liabilities, at fair value $ 53,013 $ 7,589
Margin Balances Posted to (from) Counterparties

Futures contracts Restricted cash $ 16,056 $ 8,035
TBA securities Restricted cash 1,336 -
TBA securities Other liabilities (11,422) (856)
Interest rate swaption contracts Other liabilities (27,149) (6,350)
Total margin balances on derivative contracts $ (21,179)$ 829

Eurodollar, FedFunds and T-Note futures are cash settled futurescontracts on an interestrate, with gains and losses
chargegtlitederCompany’scash accountson a daily basis. A minimum balance,or “margin”,is required to be maintainedin

thgABE BaBtdhe tables below presentinformation related to the Company’s T-Note futures positions at September 30,

December 3 202@2ind

(3 in thousands)

September 30, 2022
Average Weighted Weighted
Contract Average Average
Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equity)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short Positi®ns)
December 2022 5-year T-Note futures
(Dec 2022 - Dec 2027 Hedge Period) $ 750,500 3.54% 4.32% $ 29,141
December 2022 10-year Ultra futures
(Dec 2022 - Dec 2032 Hedge Period) $ 174,500 3.03% 3.77% $ 13,141

12



(8 in thousands)

December 31, 2021

Average Weighted Weighted
Contract Average Average
Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equity)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short Positibn)
March 2022 5-year T-Note futures
(Mar 2022 - Mar 2027 Hedge Period) $ 369,000 1.56% 1.62% $ 1,013
March 2022 10-year Ultra futures
(Mar 2022 - Mar 2032 Hedge Period) $ 220,000 1.22% 1.09% $ (3,861)

(1) Open equity represents the cumulative gains (losses) recorded on open futures positions from inception.

(2) 5-Year T-Note futures contracts were valued at a pricd @7.§ 1 at September 30, 2022 and 20.98at December 31, 2021. The contract
values of the short positions wer8®.8 million and4§6.4 million at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. 10-
futures contracts were valued at a price ¢f 8.48at SepteMarGUr2022 and $46.44at December 31, 2021. The contract value of the

position was 306.8 million and32.2 million at September 30, 2022 and Decembshaitt, 2021, respectively

Under its interest rate swap agreements, the Companytypically pays a fixed rateand receivea floating rate based on an
("paidexvaps"). The floatingrate the Company receivesunder its swap agreementshas the effectof offsettingthe repricing
characteristicsof our repurchaseagreements and cash flowson such liabilities. The Companyis typically required to post
tolagsratansisap agreements. The table below presentsinformation related to the Company’sinterest rate swap positions at

Sepxonbeind December31, 2021.

(8 in thousands)
Average Net
Fixed Average Estimated  Average
Notional Pay Receive Fair Maturity
Amount Rate Rate Value (Years)

September 30, 2022
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 500,000 0.84% 3.46% $ 60,776 4.0
Expiration > 5 years 900,000 1.70% 2.56% 108,854 6.8

$ 1,400,000 1.39% 2.88% $ 169,630 5.8
December 31, 2021
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 955,000 0.64% 0.16% $ 21,788 4.0
Expiration > 5 years 400,000 1.16% 0.21% 4,643 7.3

$ 1,355,000 0.79% 0.18% § 26431 5.0

The table below presentsinformationrelated to the Company’sinterestrate cap positionsat September
30, 2022.
(8 in thousands)
Net
Strike Estimated
Notional Swap Curve Fair

Expiration Amount Cost Rate Spread Value
February 8, 2024 $ 200,000 3 1,450 0.09% 2Y10Y  $ 1,188
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The table below presentsinformation related to the Company’sinterest rate swaptionpositions at September  December

31, 3022022 and

(3 in thousands)

Option Underlying Swap
‘Weighted Average ‘Weighted
Average Average Adjustable  Average
Fair Months to Notional Fixed Rate Term
Expiration Cost Value Expiration Amount Rate (LIBOR) (Years)
September 30, 2022
Payer Swaptions - long
<1 year 35,230 $ 83,470 10.6 $ 1,303,600 2.95% 3 Month 10.0
>10 years 7,267 7,725 238.9 80,000 2.07% 3 Month 10.0
42,497 $ 91,195 23.8 $ 1,383,600 2.90% 3 Month 10.0
Payer Swaptions - short
<1 year (17,500)$ 52,315 4.7 $  (958,300) 2.95% 3 Month 10.0
December 31, 2021
Payer Swaptions - long
<1 year 4,000 $ 1,575 32 $ 400,000 1.66% 3 Month 5.0
>] year < 2 years 32,690 19,918 18.4 1,258,500 2.46% 3 Month 14.1
36,690 § 21,493 14.7 $ 1,658,500 2.27% 3 Month 11.9
Payer Swaptions - short
<1 year (16,185)% (4,423) 53 $ (1,331,500) 2.29% 3 Month 11.4

The following table summarizes the Company’s contracts to purchase and sell TBA securities as of September 30,

Decederahil 2021.

(8 in thousands)
Notional Net
Amount Cost Market Carrying
Long (Short) Basis® Valuéd Valué?
September 30, 2022
30-Year TBA securities:
2.0% $ (175,000)$ (141,329)$ (141,723)$ (394)
3.0% (300,000) (261,047) (261,047) -
Total $ (475,000)$ (402,376)$ (402,770)$ (394)
December 31, 2021
30-Year TBA securities:
3.0% $ (575,000)$ (595,630)$ (595,934)$ (304)
Total $ (575,000)$ (595,630)$ (595,934)$ (304)

(1) Notional amount represents the par value (or principal balance) of the underlying Agency RMBS.
(2) Cost basis represents the forward price to be paid (received) for the underlying Agency RMBS.
(3) Market value represents the current market value of the TBA securities (or of the underlying Agency RMBS) as of period-end.

(4) Net carrying value represents the difference between the market value and the cost basis of the TBA securities as of period-end and
insdeyivatide assets (liabilities) at fair value in the balance sheets.
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Gain (Loss) From Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments, Net

The table below presents the effect of the Company’s derivative and other hedging instruments on the statements of
the iperai@mirky months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September

2022 2021 30, 2022 2021
T-Note futures contracts (short position) $ 207,681 $ 866 $ 84,713 $ 581
Eurodollar futures contracts (short positions) - (14) - (7)
Interest rate swaps 172,069 12,446 65,966 3,000
Payer swaptions (short positions) (80,183) 3,507 (35,239) 2,295
Payer swaptions (long positions) 150,445 5,477 59,131 1,767
Interest rate caps 988 - (499) -
Interest rate floors - 1,345 - 45
TBA securities (short positions) 14,194 864 10,642 (2,306)
TBA securities (long positions) 1,200 (8,559) 106 -
Total $ 466,394 § 15,932 § 184,820 $ 5,375

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features

The use of derivatives and other hedging instruments creates exposure to credit risk relating to potential losses that
recog@iddin the event that the counterparties to these instruments fail to perform their obligations under the contracts.
dthentprmpaRinimize this risk by limiting its counterparties for instruments which are not centrally cleared on a registered
axgjoarigeaicial institutionswith acceptable creditratings and monitoring positions withindividual counterparties. In
additbenrdhaiteampasigdge assets as collateral for its derivatives, whose amounts vary over time based on the market
yalaneat@reainingterm ofthe derivative contract. In the eventof a defaultby a counterparty, the Company may not
prosiidie@afomenider the terms of its derivative agreements, and may have difficulty obtaining its assets pledged as
deHstetiskedoTis cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral for the Company derivative instruments are included in

tasitickdasashsheets.

It is the Company's policy notto offset assets and liabilities associated with open derivative contracts. However,
Exc%@égﬂ@mayﬁlﬁi Intercontinental Exchange (“ICE”) rules characterize variation margin transfers as settlement
pppoxsdsoasdjustments to collateral. As a result, derivative assets and liabilities associated with centrally cleared
deri@MiFesTOC Bvbdeies as the central clearing party are presented as if these derivatives had been settled as of the reporting
date.
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NOTE 5. PLEDGED ASSETS
Assets Pledgedto Counterparties

The table below summarizesthe Company’sassets pledgedas collateralunder repurchaseagreements and derivative
by tygesemednding securities pledged related to securities sold butnot yet settled,as of September30, 2022 and December
31, 2021.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2022 December 31, 2021
Repurchase  Derivative Repurchase  Derivative
Assets Pledged to Counterparties Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total
PT RMBS - fair value $ 3,145,035 § - $ 3,145,035 $ 6,294,102 $ - $ 6,294,102
Structured RMBS - fair value 50,811 - 50,811 212,270 - 212,270
U.S. Treasury Notes - 36,118 36,118 - 29,740 29,740
Accrued interest on pledged securities 10,507 4 10,511 18,804 13 18,817
Restricted cash 49,377 17,392 66,769 57,264 8,035 65,299
Total $ 3,255,730 § 53,514 $ 3,309,244 § 6,582,440 $ 37,788 $§ 6,620,228

Assets Pledgedfrom Counterparties

The table below summarizesassets pledgedto the Company from counterpartiesunder repurchaseagreements and
agredmievasiag of September30, 2022 and December31, 2021.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2022 December 31, 2021
Repurchase Derivative Repurchase Derivative
Assets Pledged to Orchid Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total
Cash $ -3 38,571 § 38,571 § 4,339 $ 7,206 $ 11,545
Total $ -8 38,571 $ 38,571 § § 4339 § 7,206 § 11,545

Cash receivedas margin is recognizedas cash and cash equivalentswith a correspondingamount recognizedas an
reputdEgasgdicements or other liabilities in the balancesheets.

NOTE 6. OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company’sderivative agreements and repurchaseagreements and reverse repurchase agreements are subject to
agregidalywigh masternetting or similar arrangements,which provide for the rightof offset inthe event of defaultor in
Bmkyapt@fof either party to the transactions. The Companyreports its assets and liabilitiessubject to these arrangements
BHsdsZross
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The followingtable presentsinformation regarding those assetsand liabilitiessubject to such arrangementsas if the
preséittpdizynhéd anet basis as of September30, 2022 and December31, 2021.

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Assets

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount Offset in the Balance Sheet

of Assets Financial
Gross Amount Gross Amount Presented Instruments Cash
of Recognized Offset in the in the Received as  Received as Net
Assets Balance Sheet Balance Sheet  Collateral Collateral Amount

September 30, 2022
Interest rate swaps $ 169,630 $ - 169,630 $ -$ - $ 169,630
Interest rate swaptions 91,195 - 91,195 - (27,149) 64,046
Interest rate caps 1,188 - 1,188 - - 1,188
TBA securities 305 - 305 - (305) -

$ 262,318 $ - $ 262,318 $ -3 (27,454)§ 234,864
December 31, 2021
Interest rate swaps $ 29293 $ -3 29,293 § -9 -3 29,293
Interest rate swaptions 21,493 - 21,493 - (6,350) 15,143

$ 50,786 $ -3 50,786 $ -8 (6,350)$ 44,436

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Liabilities

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount  Offset in the Balance Sheet
of Liabilities Financial

Gross Amount Gross Amount Presented Instruments
of Recognized Offset in the in the Posted as Cash Posted Net
Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet  Collateral as Collateral Amount
September 30, 2022
Repurchase Agreements $ 3,133,861 $ - $ 3,133,861 $ (3,084,484)$ (49,377)$ -
Interest rate swaptions 52,315 - 52,315 - - 52,315
TBA securities 698 - 698 - (698) -
$ 3,186,874 $ - 3,186,874 $  (3,084,484)% (50,075)$ 52,315
December 31, 2021
Repurchase Agreements $ 6,244,106 $ - $ 6244106 $ (6,186,842)$ (57,264)% -
Interest rate swaps 2,862 - 2,862 (2,862) - -
Interest rate swaptions 4,423 - 4,423 - - 4,423
TBA securities 304 - 304 - - 304
$ 6,251,695 $ -8 6,251,695 $  (6,189,704)$ (57,264)$ 4,727

The amounts disclosed for collateralreceived by or posted to the same counterpartyup to and not exceedingthe net
asseaBrdiubitiihsresented in the balancesheets. The fair value ofthe actual collateral received by or postedto the same
sppiRtdIp@i¥eeds theamounts presented. See Note 5 for a discussionof collateralposted orreceived against or for repurchase
eblightingiveand other hedging instruments.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL STOCK

Reverse Stock Split

On August 30, 2022, the Companyeffected a 1-for-5 reversestock split of its commonstock and proportionately
numéeersfaadibeized shares of common stock. All share, per share, deferred stock unit (“DSU”) and performanceunit
belarmatisadiiasely adjusted to reflect the reverse split. The shares of common stock retaina par valueof $0.01 per share.

Common StockIssuances

The Companydid not completeany public offerings ofits common stock duringthe nine months ended September 30,
the Y2 2ndudiMecember31, 2021, the Companycompleted the followingpublic offeringsof shares of its commonstock.

(3 in thousands, except per share amounts)

Weighted
Average
Price

Received Net
Type of Offering Period Per Shar@) Shares Proceeds®
At the Market Offering Progfim First Quarter $ 25.50 61,610 $ 1,572
Follow-on Offerings First Quarter 26.55 3,588,000 95,336
At the Market Offering Progfim Second Quarter 27.00 4,617,418 124,746
At the Market Offering Progfim Third Quarter 24.70 7,163,668 177,007
At the Market Offering Progfim Fourth Quarter 24.35 4,734,940 115,398

20,165,636 $ 514,059

(1) Weighted average price received per share is after deducting the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(2) Net proceeds are net of the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(3) The Company has entered into ten equity distribution agreements, nine of which have either been terminated because all shares
were sepdaeed with a subsequent agreement.

Stock Repurchase Program

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase 40@;p@6shares of the Company’s
common stock. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase program for
HdRiBAaD04,564shares of the Company's common stock. Coupled with 3h¢75 Ishares remaining from the origid80,000
share authorization, the increased authorization brought the total authorizdtjofmlt 1 shares, representing 10% of the
Company’s then outstanding share count.

On December 9, 2021, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the number of shares of the Company’s
availubTynantgagkck repurchase program for up to an addiBidia,39%hares, bringing the remaining authorization under
stock repurchase program 539,86 Ishares, representing approximatél§ 10% of the Company’s then outstanding shares
common stock. of

On October 12, 2022, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the number of shares of the Company’s
avaikfbtenantgaelck repurchase program for up to an addifidifil,000shares, bringing the remaining authorization under

stock repurchase program 183,60 Ishares, representing approximatél§ 18% of the Company’s then outstanding shares
common stock. of
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As part of the stock repurchase program, shares may be purchased in open market transactions, block purchases,
privabebpgbgotiated transactions, or pursuant to any trading plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of
theche@artiest of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™). Open market repurchases will be made in accordance with
Ruthange B¢ctwhich sets certain restrictions on the method, timing, price and volume of open market stock repurchases.
ihabienipgice and amount of any repurchases will be determined by the Company in its discretion and will be subjectto
seanemisadidions, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The authorization does not obligate the
Sqyupremghioparticular amount of common stock and the program may be suspended or discontinued at the Company’s
diRgisOPrior notice. The stock repurchase program has no termination date.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through September 30, 2022, the Company repurchasedlag4®733 62
shares at an aggregate cost of approximate¥d8 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of
per share. During the nine months ended Septefid$et 20, 2022, the Company repurchased a 30 260shares at an aggregate
cost of approximately$t million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average pri@aipkr share. No shares were
repurchased during the year ended December 31, 2021. Subsequent to September 30, 2022, and through October 27, 2022,
thempany repurchased a total bf644,044shares at an aggregate cost of approximatelig®million, including commissions and
fees, for a weighted average price & @4 per share. The remaining authorization under the stock repurchase program as of
27, 2022 was5,845,55 Khares. October

Cash Dividends
The table below presents the cash dividends declared on the Company’s

common stock.

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 6.975% 4,662
2014 10.800 22,643
2015 9.600 38,748
2016 8.400 41,388
2017 8.400 70,717
2018 5.350 55,814
2019 4.800 54,421
2020 3.950 53,570
2021 3.900 97,601
2022 - YT 2.155 76,024
Totals $ 64.330 $ 515,588

(1) OnOctober 12, 2022the Company declared a dividend O£ per share to be paid oNovember 28, 2022The effect of this dividend
included in the table above but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of Septembigr 30, 2022.

19



NOTE 8. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In 2021, the Company’sBoard of Directors adopted, and the stockholdersapproved, the Orchid Island Capital,Inc. 2021
InceBgu#Plan (the “2021 IncentivePlan™) toreplace the Orchid Island Capital, Inc. 2012 Equity IncentivePlan (the “2012
bagersbeeRdawith the 2021 IncentivePlan, the “Incentive Plans”). The 2021 Incentive Plan providesfor the awardof stock
epprisasiogkights, stockaward, performanceunits, otherequity-based awards (anddividend equivalentswith respectto
peidodanince units and other equity-basedawards) andincentive awards. The 2021 Incentive Plan is administeredby the
ComnpsnsatioNthe Company’sBoard of Directors except that the Company’s full Board of Directors will administerawards
whdeie diseetaployeesof the Companyor its affiliates. The 2021 Incentive Plan provides for awardsof up to an ag@tégsf¢lod
issued and outstanding shares of the Company’scommon stock(on a fully diluted basis)at the timeof the awards,subject toa
BYBYUBMII 473,324hares ofthe Company’scommon stockthat may be issued under the 2021 IncentivePlan. The 2021
replaces the2012 Theesnivedhan and no further grants will be made underthe 2012 Incentive Plan. However, any outstanding
ahdaidthe 2012 IncentivePlan will continue inaccordance with the terms ofthe 2012 Incentive Plan and any award agreement
edasetadbiwith such outstandingawards.

Performance Units

The Companyhas issued, and may in the futureissue additional, performance units under the IncentivePlans to certain
offic¥saiemployees of its Manager. “Performance Units” vestafter the end of adefined performanceperiod, basedon
sasipagipmahce conditions set forth in the performanceunit agreement. When earned, each Performance Unit will be settled
h¢ihaice of one share of the Company’scommon stock,at which time the Performance Unit will be cancelled. The
Bsrtarmangdbtivtquivalent rights, whichentitle the Participantsto receive distributionsdeclared by the Companyon common
sieciadduddehe right to vote the underlying shares of common stock. Performance Units are subject to forfeiture should the
hewieipatiaas an executiveofficer oremployee ofthe Companyor the Manager. Compensationexpense for the Performance
I#gitfded in incentive compensationon the statementsof operations, is recognizedover the remaining vesting periodonce it
pesbaigs that the performance conditions will be achieved.

The followingtable presentsinformationrelated to Performance Units outstandingduring the nine months ended
and September30, 2022

(3 in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested, beginning of period 26,645 $ 29.40 911  $ 37.25
Granted 35,114 16.55 27,579 29.40
Forfeited (8,464) 21.40 - -
Vested and issued (7,594) 29.40 (911) 37.25
Unvested, end of period 45,701 $ 21.01 27,579 $ 29.40
Compensation expense during period $ 331 $ 222
Unrecognized compensation expense, end of period $ 535 $ 592
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 375 $ 674
Weighted-average remaining vesting term (in years) 1.4 1.6
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The number of shares of common stock issuableupon the vesting ofthe remainingoutstanding Performance Units was
resutedfited Bk value impairmentevent that occurred pursuant to the termsof the long term equity incentive compensation
prBsdthestablished under the Company’s 2012 Equity IncentivePlan and 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. The book value
vopaitedenheyetife Company's book value per share declined by more than 15% during the quarterended March 31, 2022 and
thémpany’s book value pershare declinefrom January 1, 2022 to June 30,2022 was more than 10%. The Plans providethat if
Beelkavalue impairment event occurs, then the number of outstanding Performance Units that are outstandingas of the last day
gfiavedt peeiodshall be reducedby 15%.

Stock Awards

The Companyhas issued, and may in the futureissue additional,immediately vested commonstock under the Incentive
certdltapsdoutive officers and employees of its MariRkerfollowingtable presentsinformationrelated to fully vested common
issued duringthe nine monthsended September30,t02R and 2021. All of the fully vested shares of common stock issued
shmBdhaasES eptember 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related compensationexpense, weregranted withrespect to service
derfapnké fiscal years ended December31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(3 in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September

30,2022 2021
Fully vested shares granted 35,114 27,579
Weighted average grant date price per share $ 16.55 $ 29.40
Compensation expense related to fully vested shares of common stock awards $ 581 $ 811

Deferred Stock Units

Non-employeedirectors receive aportion of their compensationin the form of DSU awardspursuant to the Incentive
DSPlepsedémtba right toreceive one share of the Company’scommon stock. Beginning in 2022, each non-employeedirector
£88eplRCA oS his or her compensationin the form of DSUs. The DSUs are immediatelyvested and are settled at a futuredate
bhsedsmdhhe individualparticipant. Compensationexpense forthe DSUs s included in directors’fees and liability insurance
sathenents of operations. The DSUs contain dividendequivalentrights, whichentitle the participant to receive distributions
dralgsedPyihiommon stock. These dividendequivalent rights are settled in cash oradditional DSUs at the participant’s
BIstindo hloe include the rightto vote the underlying shares of common stock.

The followingtable presentsinformationrelated to the DSUs outstanding during the nine monthsended September
20280, 2022 and

(3 in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Grant Date Grant
Shares Fair Value Shares Pate Value
Outstanding, beginning of period 28,595 $ 26.92 18,189 $ 27.20
Granted and vested 14,227 16.52 7,337 27.30
Outstanding, end of period 42822 % 23.46 25526 $ 27.20
Compensation expense during period $ 239 $ 180
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 351 $ 624
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NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the
businedindageuepsedt is not aware of any reported or unreported contingencies at September 30, 2022.

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The Company will generally not be subject to U.S. federal income tax onits REIT taxable income to the extent that it
REItisisibbliesritome to its stockholders and satisfies the ongoing REIT requirements, including meeting certain asset,
WeeRGvRErship tests. A REIT must generally distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable income, determined without
tkehretionthfor dividends paid and excluding net capital gain, to its stockholders, annually to maintain REIT status. An
theawinh efughieh 85% of its REIT ordinary income and 95% of its REIT capital gain net income, plus certain undistributed
PreomeEaBIa years, must be distributed within the taxable year, in order to avoid the imposition of an excise tax. The
teimgiedngay be distributed up to the end of the following taxable year, provided the REIT elects to treat such amountas a
iéoiilyeibn and meets certain other requirements.

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The Companyhad dividendeligible Performance Units and Deferred Stock Units that were outstanding during the nine
mon#hsl éheied September 30, 2022 and 2021. The basic and diluted per share computationsinclude theseunvested
Beafoyereneddudtk Unitsif there isincome availableto common stock, as they have dividend participationrights. The
PerRsitethnce Units and Deferred Stock Units have no contractualobligation to share in losses. Because thereis no such
ahliggé@RerormanceUnits and Deferred Stock Units are not includedin the basicand diluted EPS computationswhen no
WGBTS to common stock eventhough they are consideredparticipatingsecurities.

The table below reconcilesthe numeratorand denominatorof EPS forthe nine and three months ended September 30,
2022022 and

(in thousands, except per share information)

Nine Months Ended September 30I'hree Months Ended September

2022 2021 30, 2022 2021

Basic and diluted EPS per common share:
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS per share of common stock:

Net (loss) income - Basic and diluted $ (293,380)% (20,196)$ (84,514)% 26,038
Weighted average shares of common stock:

Shares of common stock outstanding at the balance sheet date 35,066 30,664 35,066 30,664

Unvested dividend eligible share based compensation

outstanding at the balance sheet date - - - 53

Effect of weighting 271 (9,603) 140 (5,000)
Weighted average shares-basic and diluted 35,337 21,061 35,206 25,717
Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic and diluted $ 83D$ 0.95)$% 2.40)$ 1.00
Anti-dilutive incentive shares not included in calculation 89 53 89 -
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NOTE 12. FAIR VALUE

The framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities defines fairvalue as theprice that would be received
asset@iglhianto transfera liability (an exitprice). A fair value measure shouldreflect the assumptions that market participants
prasilsbustiisset or liability, includingthe assumptionsabout therisk inherentin a particularvaluation technique, the effect of
anadigissienr use ofan asset andthe risk ofnon-performance. Required disclosures include stratificationof balance sheet
AIRAYIMSd at fair valuebased on inputs the Company usesto derive fair value measurements. These stratificationsare:

e Level 1 valuations,where the valuation is based on quoted marketprices foridentical assets or liabilities traded in
eethyehmacksds exchanges and over-the-countermarkets withsufficient volume),

e [evel 2 valuations,where the valuation is based on quoted marketprices for similar instrumentstraded inactive
prickstotidigtcal or similar instrumentsin markets that are not active and model-basedvaluation techniques for
ybishalint assumptions are observablein the market,and

e [evel 3 valuations,where the valuationis generated from model-basedtechniques that use significant assumptions not
observablein the market,but observablebased on Company-specificdata. These unobservableassumptions reflect
thempany’s ownestimates for assumptionsthat market participantswould use in pricing the assetor liability.
Melwaigors typically include optionpricing models, discountedcash flow models and similar techniques,but may also
ineledartheketprices ofassets or liabilities that are not directlycomparable to the subjectasset or liability.

The Company'sRMBS and TBA securitiesare Level 2 valuations,and such valuationscurrently are determinedby the
basedURR@pendent pricing sourcesand/or thirdparty brokerquotes. Becausethe price estimates may vary, the Company
saestimpkdgmentsand assumptionsabout the appropriateprice touse to calculatethe fair values. TheCompany andthe
présipenstemicesuse variousvaluation techniques to determinethe price of the Company’ssecurities. These techniquesinclude
ghseRvitgecent market for like or identicalassets (includingsecurity coupon, maturity, yield, and prepayment speeds), spread
pitbinigues to determinemarket creditspreads (optionadjusted spread, zero volatility spread, spread to the U.S. Treasury curve
& aeadhmarksuch as a TBA), and model drivenapproaches (the discountedcash flow method, Black Scholesand SABR
repdalsowbisdervable market ratessuch as the term structureof interest rates and volatility). The appropriatespread pricing
inethadiwseeharket convention. The pricing source determinesthe spread of recently observed trade activityor observable
maketidfarto those being priced. The spreadis then adjustedbased on variances in certain characteristicsbetween the
oikstation and the assetbeing priced. Those characteristicsinclude: typeof asset, the expectedlife of the asset, the stability
phelictability of the expectedfuture cashflows ofthe asset, whether the coupon of the assetis fixed or adjustable, the
ge@iA{ordpPiecable, the coupon, the maturity, the issuer, size ofthe underlyingloans, year in which the underlyingloans
Isaretorigin@edio, statein which the underlyingloans reside, credit scoreof the underlyingborrowers and other variables if
Ipierépirieidue of thesecurity is determined by using theadjusted spread.

The Company’sU.S. Treasury Notes are based on quoted prices for identicalinstruments in active markets and are

Leveldsaifiedtas

The Company’sfutures contractsare Level 1 valuations,as they areexchange-tradedinstruments and quoted market
readiI§iGRsaiIable. Futures contractsare settled daily. The Company’sinterest rate swaps and interestrate swaptionsare Level 2
valuations. The fair value of interestrate swapsis determinedusing a discountedcash flow approach using forward market
i@igiastastrates, whichare observableinputs. The fair value of interestrate swaptionsis determinedusing an optionpricing
model.

RMBS (basedon the fair value option),derivatives and TBA securitieswere recordedat fair valueon a recurringbasis
and thidiagibathinended September 30, 2022 and 2021. When determining fair value measurements, the Company considers
thenbigi@ehntageousmarket in which it would transactand considersassumptions that market participants would use when
pgseind¥ieen possible, the Companylooks to activeand observablemarkets to price identicalassets. When identicalassets are
nohétadeeharkets, the Company looks to marketobservable data for similar assets.
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The followingtable presentsfinancial assets (liabilities)measured at fair valueon a recurringbasis as of September 30,
Dec@@beehtl, 202 1. Derivative contracts are reportedas a net position by contract type, and not based on master netting

arrangements.

(in thousands)

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
September 30, 2022
Mortgage-backed securities -3 3,201,214 $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 36,118 - -
Interest rate swaps - 169,630 -
Interest rate swaptions - 38,880 -
Interest rate caps - 1,188 -
TBA securities - (394) -
December 31, 2021
Mortgage-backed securities -3 6,511,095 $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 37,175 - -
Interest rate swaps - 26,431 -
Interest rate swaptions - 17,070 -
TBA securities - (304) -

During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers of financial assets or

betwirhiligiess 1, 2 or 3.

NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Management Agreement

The Company is externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuant to the terms of
management agreement. The management agreement has been renewed thrdigpluary 20, 2023nd provides for automatic
year extension options thereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under the term@Rff-the management
Agagaments 8ponsible for administering the business activities and day-to-day operations of the Company. The Manager
raeailidy management fee in the amount of:

One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month-end equity, as defined in the management
ageamensh of 1.25% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $250 million and less than or equal
1ifsOY, and

e One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $500 million.

On April 1, 2022, pursuant to the third amendment to the management agreement entered into on November 16, 2021,
Manath& began providing certain repurchase agreement trading, clearing and administrative services to the Company that
baehbsasly provided by AVM, L.P. under an agreement terminated on March 31, 2022. In consideration for such services,
haIampRaYollowing fees to the Manager:
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e A daily fee equal to the outstanding principal balance of repurchase agreement fundingin place as of the end of
sughigtied by 1.5 basis points for the amount of aggregate outstanding principal balance less than or equal to $5
hilligplieddy 1.0 basis point for any amount of aggregate outstanding principal balance in excess of $5 billion, and

e A fee for the clearing and operational services provided by personnel of the Manager equal to $10,000 per month.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay the
Compilaytagsiothgta portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement. Should the Company
inemapatedhe agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to three times the average annual
18anagABRnkd in the management agreement, before or on the last day of the term of the agreement.

Total expenses recorded for the management fee and allocated overhead incurred were approx®whtaijl®Hn and 1
million for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2022, respectivelg, dndlfion and2$5 million for the nine and
months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. At September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2081tethe net amount due to
applietémmiedy 151 million and1$1 million, respectively.

Other Relationships with Bimini

Robert Cauley, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors, also serves as Chief
OfficdPasdi¥mirman of the Board of Directors of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. George H. Haas,
Oérilpany’s Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer, Secretary and a member of the Board of Directors, also
RSB RNt ial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Treasurer of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. In
8dgitatbers3®l 2022, Bimini owisd®,87 Ishares, or1.5%, of the Company’s common stock.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes to those statements included in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. The discussion may contain certain forward-
lesingnts that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are those that are not historical in nature. As a result
efany factors, such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our actual results may
differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements.

Common StockReverse Split

On August 30, 2022, the Company effected a 1-for-5 reverse stock split of its common stock and proportionately decreased
numibér of authorized shares of common stock. All share and per share information has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the
reverse split.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that invests in residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) which are issued and
guaranteed by a federally chartered corporation or agency (“Agency RMBS”). Our investment strategy focuses on, and our
ponklivof, two categories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pass-through Agency RMBS, such as mortgage pass-through
peddcBieFannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae (the “GSEs”) and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs™) issued by the
@GPESRMBS™) and (ii) structured Agency RMBS, such as interest-only securities (“I0s”), inverse interest-only securities (“IIOs”)
Phidhcipal only securities (“POs™), among other types of structured Agency RMBS. We were formed by Bimini in August 2010,
commenced operations on November 24, 2010 and completed our initial public offering (“IPO”) on February 20, 2013. We are
externally managed by Bimini Advisors, an investment adviser registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).

Our business objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted total returns over the long term through a combination of capital
appreciation and the payment of regular monthly distributions. We intend to achieve this objective by investing in and
stratagisalbapital between the two categories of Agency RMBS described above. We seek to generate income from (i) the net
beedst on our leveraged PT RMBS portfolio and the leveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, and (ii) the
intwesé we generate from the unleveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio. We intend to fund our PT RMBS
aBftain of our structured Agency RMBS through short-term borrowings structured as repurchase agreements. PT RMBS and
steugioye®MBS typically exhibit materially different sensitivities to movements in interestrates. Declines in the value of one
RBEO ffset by appreciation in the other. The percentage of capital that we allocate to our two Agency RMBS asset categories
witl and will be actively managed in an effort to maintain the level of income generated by the combined portfolios, the stability
ifddbigte stream and the stability of the value of the combined portfolios. We believe that this strategy will enhance our liquidity,
earnings, book value stability and asset selection opportunities in various interestrate environments.

We operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”). We generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax to the extent that we currently distribute all of

BEIT taxable income (as defined in the Code) to our stockholders and maintain our REIT qualification.

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ORC”.
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Capital Raising Activities

On August 4, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August2020 Equity Distribution Agreement”) with
saled@iglents pursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of
89fmmon stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a
t1181538,730 shares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $150.0
million, and net proceeds of approximately $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June 2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with J.P.
SecivigrgahL.C (“J.P. Morgan™), relating to the offer and sale of 1,520,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased
theres of our common stock from the Company pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $26.00 per share. In
sdditiented J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 228,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms
avflditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 1,748,000 shares of our
§RJIEGE urred on January 25, 2021, with proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with J.P.
relatMi@rgfithe offer and sale of 1,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock
fherCompany pursuant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $27.25 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-
dp¥ion to purchase up to an additional 240,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan
exercised in full on March 3, 2021. The closing of the offering of 1,840,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March 5,
A% proceeds to us of approximately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement”) with
saled@igients pursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares of
@9Mmon stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a
61191881,467 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $250.0
anidlliest, proceeds of approximately $246.2 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in October 2021.

On October 29, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “October 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement”)
fourwilles agents pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares
8fir common stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. Through
September 30, 2022, we issued a total of 3,167,140 shares under the October 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate
Bresteds of approximately $78.3 million, and net proceeds of approximately $77.0 million, after commissions and fees.

Stock Repurchase Agreement

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 400,000 shares of our common stock.
timid@iemanner, price and amount of any repurchases is determined by the Company in its discretion and is subject to economic
agket conditions, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The authorization does not obligate the Company
tRquire any particular amount of common stock and the program may be suspended or discontinued at the Company’s discretion
without prior notice. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase program for up to
gtlditional 904,564 shares of the Company’s common stock. Coupled with the 156,751 shares remaining from the original 400,000
share authorization, the increased authorization brought the total authorizationto 1,061,316 shares, representing 10% of the
Company’s then outstanding share count.
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On December 9, 2021, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the number of shares of the Company’s common stock
available in the stock repurchase program for up to an additional 3,372,399 shares, bringing the remaining authorization under the
stock repurchase program to 3,539,861 shares, representing approximately 10% of the Company’s then outstanding shares of
common stock.

On October 12, 2022, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the number of shares of the Company’s common stock
available in the stock repurchase program for up to an additional 4,300,000 shares, bringing the remaining authorization under the
stock repurchase program to 6,183,601 shares, representing approximately 18% of the Company’s then outstanding shares of
common stock. This stock repurchase program has no termination date.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through September 30, 2022, the Company repurchased a total of
sharésddt/ad@rgregate cost of approximately $44.8 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of
$3Pshare. During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company repurchased a total of 350,260 shares of its common
stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $4.4 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of $12.68
pkare. Subsequent to September 30, 2022, and through October 27, 2022, the Company repurchased a total of 1,644,044 shares at
afgregate cost of approximately $14.2 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of $8.64 per share.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and Financial Condition

A variety of industry and economic factors may impact our results of operations and financial condition. These factors
include:

interest rate trends;

the difference between Agency RMBS yields and our funding and hedging costs;

competition for, and supply of, investments in Agency RMBS;

actions taken by the U.S. government, including the presidential administration, the Federal Reserve (the “Fed”), the
Fedwyiglg Financing Agency (the “FHFA”), Federal Housing Administration (the “FHA”), the Federal Open Market
(thetMOREC”) and the U.S. Treasury;

prepayment rates on mortgages underlying our Agency RMBS and credit trends insofar as they affect prepayment rates;
atisbr market developments.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to our business may also impact our results of operations and financial condition.
factord igstude:

our degree of leverage;

our access to funding and borrowing capacity;
our borrowing costs;

our hedging activities;

the market value of our investments

increases in our cost of funds resulting from increases in the Fed Funds rate thatare controlled by the Fed which have
occurred, and are likely to continue to occur, in 2022; and

e the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the requirements to qualify fora registration exemption under the Investment
Company Act.

Results of Operations

Described below are the Company’s results of operations for the nine and three monthsended September30, 2022, as compared
the C#npany’sresults of operations for the nineand three months ended September 30, 2021.
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Net (Loss)Income Summary

Net loss for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2022 was $293.4 million, or $8.31 pershare. Netloss for the nine months
SepteriiBed30, 2021 was $20.2 million, or $0.95 pershare. Net loss for the threemonths ended September 30, 2022 was $84.5
8ulliepepEhare. Netincome forthe three months ended September 30, 2021 was $26.0 million, or $1.00 pershare. The components
aét (loss) income for the nine andthree monthsended September30, 2022 and 2021, along with the changes in those componentsare
presented in the tablebelow:

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended, September 30,

2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Interest income $ 112,735 $ 90,279 $ 22,456 $ 35,610 $ 34,169 $ 1,441
Interest expense (32,196) (5,067)  (27,129)  (21361) (1,570 (19,791)
Net interest income 80,539 85,212 (4,673) 14,249 32,599 (18,350)
Losses on RMBS and derivative contracts (359,059) (94,522) (264,537) (93,544) (2,887) (90,657)
Net portfolio (loss) income (278,520) (9310)  (269210)  (79,295) 29712 (109,007)
Expenses (14,.859)  (10,886) (3,973) (5218) (3,674) (1,544)
Net (loss) income $  (293379)  (20,196)$ (273,183)5  (84,513)$ 26,038 $  (110,551)

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliations

In addition to the resultspresented in accordancewith GAAP, our resultsof operationsdiscussed below includecertain non-
finan&id4formation, including “Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses”, “Economic Interest Expense”
afidonomic Net InterestIncome.”

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses

We have electedto account for our Agency RMBSunder the fair value option. Securitiesheld under the fair value option are
recorded at estimated fair value,with changesin the fair value recordedas unrealized gains or losses throughthe statementsof
operations.

In addition,we have notdesignated our derivativefinancial instrumentsused for hedging purposesas hedges foraccounting
purposes, but rather hold them for economichedging purposes. Changes in fair value of these instruments are presentedin a separate
line item in the Company’sstatements of operationsand are notincluded ininterest expense. As such, for financial reporting
PEResEexpense and cost of fundsare not impactedby the fluctuationin value ofthe derivativeinstruments.

Presenting net earningsexcluding realized andunrealized gains and losses allowsmanagementto: (i) isolatethe net interest
and of@®¢penses ofthe Companyover time, free of all fair value adjustments and (ii) assess the effectiveness of our fundingand
hedging strategieson our capitalallocation decisions and our asset allocationperformance. Our funding and hedging strategies,
gfi¢ation and asset selection are integralto our risk management strategy, and thereforecritical to the managementof our portfolio.
Béieve thatthe presentationof our net earnings excluding realized and unrealizedgains is usefulto investorsbecause it provides a
Bfédsparingour results of operationsto those of our peerswho have notelected the same accountingtreatment. Our presentationof
B&fnings excluding realized andunrealized gains and losses may not be comparableto similarly-titledmeasures of other companies,
Wik use differentcalculations. As a result,net earningsexcluding realized andunrealized gains and losses shouldnot be considered
salbstitute for our GAAPnet income (loss) asa measure of our financial performance or any measureof our liquidityunder GAAP.
tabte belowpresents a reconciliationof our netincome (loss)determined in accordancewith GAAP and net earningsexcluding
serligadealized gains and losses.

Described below are the Company’s results of operations for the nine months ended September30, 2022 and 2021, and for each
quarter in 2022 to dateand 2021.
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Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses

(in thousands, except per share data)

Per Share
Net Earnings Net Earnings
Excluding Excluding
Realized and Realized and Realized and Realized and
Net Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealized Unrealized
Income Gains and Gains and Income Gains and Gains and
(GAAP) Losses() Losses (GAAP) Losses Losses
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ (84,513)$ (93,544)$ 9,031 § (2.40)$ (2.66)$ 0.26
June 30, 2022 (60,139) (82,283) 22,144 (1.70) (2.32) 0.62
March 31, 2022 (148,727) (183,232) 34,505 (4.20) (5.18) 0.98
December 31, 2021 (44,564) (82,597) 38,033 (1.33) (2.46) 1.13
September 30, 2021 26,038 (2,887) 28,925 1.01 (0.11) 1.12
June 30, 2021 (16,865) (40,844) 23,979 (0.85) (2.05) 1.20
March 31, 2021 (29,369) (50,791) 21,422 (1.72) (2.98) 1.26
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ (293,379)$ (359,059)$ 65,680 $ 83D$ (10.16) $ 1.85
September 30, 2021 (20,196) (94,522) 74,326 (0.96) (4.49) 3.53

(1) Includes realizedand unrealized gains (losses)on RMBS and derivativefinancial instruments,including netinterest incomeor expense on
interewtaps.

Economic Interest Expense and Economic NetlInterest Income

We use derivativeand other hedging instruments,specifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures contracts, short
U.S. Mesii@RpiBeurities, interest rate swaps and swaptions, to hedge a portion of the interestrate risk on repurchase agreementsin a
rising rate environment.

We have notelected to designate our derivativeholdings forhedge accountingtreatment. Changes in fair value of these
are piosEAIBtHALS separateline itemin our statementsof operationsand not includedin interestexpense. Assuch, for financial
PRIPUIRE interest expense andcost of fundsare not impactedby the fluctuationin value ofthe derivativeinstruments.

For the purposeof computingeconomic netinterest income and ratios relatingto cost of funds measures, GAAP interest
has be¥R@dsted toreflect therealized andunrealized gains orlosses on certain derivativeinstrumentsthe Companyuses,
Fhaeoidisiably Fed Funds and U.S. Treasury futures, and interestrate swaps and swaptions, that pertainto each periodpresented. We
believe thatadjusting our interestexpense forthe periods presented by the gainsor losses on these derivative instruments would not
accurately reflect our economic interest expense for these periods. The reasonis that thesederivative instruments may cover periods
thaend into the future,not just thecurrent period. Any realizedor unrealized gains or losses on the instrumentsreflect the change in
market valueof the instrumentcaused by changes inunderlyinginterestrates applicableto the termcovered by the instrument,not
iH8tcurrentperiod. Foreach period presented, we have combinedthe effects of the derivativefinancial instruments in place forthe
respective period withthe actual interest expense incurredon borrowingsto reflect total economicinterest expense for the applicable
period. Interestexpense, includingthe effect of derivativeinstruments for the period, is referred to as economicinterest expense. Net
interestincome, whencalculated to include the effect of derivativeinstruments for the period,is referredto as economicnet interest
income. Thispresentationincludes gains orlosses onall contractsin effect duringthe reportingperiod, coveringthe currentperiod as
#ePeriods in the future.
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The Company from time to time investsin TBAs, which are forward contracts for the purchaseor sale of Agency RMBSat a
predeterminedprice, face amount, issuer, coupon and stated maturity on an agreed-upon future date. The specific Agency RMBSto
Belivered into the contractare not knownuntil shortlybefore the settlement date. We may choose, priorto settlement,to move the
settlement of these securities out to alater date by entering into a dollarroll transaction. The Agency RMBS purchasedor sold fora
forward settlement date are typically pricedat a discountto equivalentsecurities settling in the currentmonth. Consequently, forward
purchases of Agency RMBS and dollar roll transactions representa form of off-balance sheet financing. These TBAs are accounted
ferdstives and marked to market through theincome statement. Gains or losseson TBAs areincluded withgains or losses on other
derivative contracts and are notincluded in interest income for purposes of the discussionsbelow.

We believe that economicinterest expense and economic net interestincome providemeaningful information to consider, in
to thefdip@itiveamounts preparedin accordancewith GAAP. The non-GAAPmeasures helpmanagement to evaluate its financial
position andperformance without theeffects of certain transactionsand GA AP adjustments that are not necessarily indicative of our
current investmentportfolio or operations. The unrealizedgains orlosses on derivative instrumentspresented in our statementsof
operations are not necessarilyrepresentativeof the totalinterest rate expensethat we willultimately realize. Thisis because as interest
rates moveup or down in the future,the gains or losses we ultimatelyrealize, andwhich will affect ourtotal interestrate expensein
peitioels, may differ from the unrealized gains or losses recognizedas of the reporting date.

Our presentationof the economicvalue of ourhedging strategyhas importantlimitations. First, othermarket participantsmay
calculate economic interest expense andeconomic netinterestincome differentlythan the way we calculatethem. Second, while we
believe thatthe calculationof the economicvalue of ourhedging strategy described above helpsto present our financialposition and
performance, it may be of limited usefulness as an analyticaltool. Therefore,the economicvalue of our investmentstrategy should
PRIDE inisolation and is nota substitute for interestexpense andnet interestincome computedin accordancewith GAAP,

The tables below presenta reconciliationof the adjustmentsto interestexpense shown for each period relativeto our derivative

instruments,and the incomestatement line item, gains (losses)on derivativeinstruments,calculated in accordancewith GAAP for
qaeltter 0£2022 to dateand 2021.

Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments
(in thousands)

Funding Hedges

Recognized in Attributed to Attributed to
Income U.S. Treasury and TBA Current Future
Statement Securities Gain (Loss) Period Periods
(GAAP) (Short Positions)  (Long Positions) (Non-GAAP) (Non-GAAP)
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 184,819 § 10,642 § 106 $ 5,043 § 169,028
June 30, 2022 103,758 1,013 1,067 1,996 99,682
March 31, 2022 177,816 2,539 27 (1,287) 176,537
December 31, 2021 10,945 2,568 - (7,949) 16,326
September 30, 2021 5,375 (2,306) - (1,248) 8,929
June 30, 2021 (34,915) (5,963) - (5,104) (23,848)
March 31, 2021 45,472 9,133 (8,559) (4,044) 48,942
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 466,393 § 14,194 § 1,200 $ 5,752 $ 445,247
September 30, 2021 15,932 864 (8,559) (10,396) 34,023
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Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income
(in thousands)

Interest Expense on Borrowings

Gains
(Losses) on

Derivative
Instruments Net Interest Income
GAAP Attributed Economic GAAP Economic

Interest Interest to Current Interest Net Interest Net Interest

Income Expense Period) Expense? Income Incomé
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 35,610 $ 21,361 $ 5,043 $ 16,318 § 14,249 $ 19,292
June 30, 2022 35,268 8,180 1,996 6,184 27,088 $ 29,084
March 31, 2022 41,857 2,655 (1,287) 3,942 39,202 37,915
December 31, 2021 44,421 2,023 (7,949) 9,972 42,398 34,449
September 30, 2021 34,169 1,570 (1,248) 2,818 32,599 31,351
June 30, 2021 29,254 1,556 (5,104) 6,660 27,698 22,594
March 31, 2021 26,856 1,941 (4,044) 5,985 24,915 20,871
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 112,735 § 32,196 $ 5,752 $ 26,444 $ 80,539 $ 86,291
September 30, 2021 90,279 5,067 (10,396) 15,463 85,212 74,816

(1) Reflects the effect of derivative instrument hedges for only the period presented.
(2) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP interest expense.
(3) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP net interest income.

Net Interest Income

During the nine months ended September30, 2022, we generated$80.5 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $112.7
intersdtligaahe from RMBS assetsoffset by $32.2million of interest expense on borrowings. For the comparableperiod ended
September 30, 2021, we generated $85.2 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $90.3 million of interestincome from RMBS
afsess by $5.1million ofinterest expense onborrowings. The $22.5 million increasein interestincome was due to a 73 basis point
{nbRsAde in the yield on average RMBS, which was partially offset by a $98.8 milliondecrease in average RMBS. The $27.1 million
increase ininterest expense wasdue to a 85 bps increasein the averagecost of funds,partially offset by a $63.0 milliondecrease in
average outstandingborrowings.

On an economicbasis, our interest expense on borrowings for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $26.4
million and $15.5 million,respectively, resultingin $86.3 million and $74.8 million of economic net interestincome, respectively.

During the three monthsended September30, 2022, we generated$14.2 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $35.6
intefadtligeoate from RMBS assetsoffset by $21.4million of interest expense on borrowings. For the threemonths ended September
3021, we generated $32.6 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $34.2 million of interestincome from RMBS assetsoffset by
Hilbion ofinterestexpense onborrowings. The $1.4 million increasein interestincome was due to a 133 bps increasein the yieldon
average RMBS, partially offset by a$1,565.3 million decreasein average RMBS. The $19.8 million increasein interest expense was
€818 235 bps increasein the averagecost of funds, partially offset by a$1,417.9 million decreasein average outstanding borrowings.

On an economicbasis, our interest expense on borrowings for the threemonths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $16.3
million and $2.8 million,respectively, resultingin $19.3 millionand $31.4 million of economic net interestincome, respectively.
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The tables below provideinformation on our portfolioaverage balances, interestincome, yieldon assets, average borrowings,
expédnterasdstof funds, net interestincome and net interestspread for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 andeach
quarter 0f2022 to dateand 2021 onboth a GAAPand economicbasis.

(8 in thousands)

Average Yield on Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds

RMBS Interest  Average Average GAAP Economic GAAP Economic

Held? Income RMBS Borrowing$) Basis Basis® Basis Basis®
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 3,571,037 § 35,610 3.99% $ 3,446,420 $ 21,361 $ 16,318 2.48% 1.89%
June 30, 2022 4,260,727 35,268 3.31% 4,111,544 8,180 6,184 0.80% 0.60%
March 31, 2022 5,545,844 41,857 3.02% 5,354,107 2,655 3,942 0.20% 0.29%
December 31, 2021 6,056,259 44,421 2.93% 5,728,988 2,023 9,972 0.14% 0.70%
September 30, 2021 5,136,331 34,169 2.66% 4,864,287 1,570 2,818 0.13% 0.23%
June 30, 2021 4,504,887 29,254 2.60% 4,348,192 1,556 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 26,856 2.66% 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 4,459,203 $ 112,735 3.37% $ 4,304,024 $ 32,196 $ 26,444 1.00% 0.82%
September 30, 2021 4,557,978 90,279 2.64% 4,367,037 5,067 15,463 0.15% 0.47%
(8 in thousands)

Net Interest Income Net Interest Spread
GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Basis Basis® Basis Basis®

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 14,249 $ 19,292 1.51% 2.10%
June 30, 2022 27,088 29,084 2.51% 2.71%
March 31, 2022 39,202 37,915 2.82% 2.73%
December 31, 2021 42,398 34,449 2.79% 2.23%
September 30, 2021 32,599 31,351 2.53% 2.43%
June 30, 2021 27,698 22,594 2.46% 1.99%
March 31, 2021 24,915 20,871 2.46% 2.04%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 80,539 $ 86,291 2.37% 2.55%
September 30, 2021 85,212 74,816 2.49% 2.17%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings presented in the tables above and the tables on pages 34 and 35 are calculated based on the
average balances of the underlying investment portfolio/borrowings balances and are annualized for the periods presented. Average
balances for quarterly periods are calculated using two data points, the beginning and ending balances.

(2) Economic interest expense and economic net interest incprasented in the table above and the tables on page 35 includes the effect
of our derivative instrument hedges for only the periods presented.

(3) Represents interest cost of our borrowings and the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period divided by average

RMBS.
(4) Economic net interest spread is calculated by subtracting average economic cost of funds from realized yield on average RMBS.

Interest Income and Average Asset Yield

Our interestincome for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $112.7 millionand $90.3 million, respectively.
had a¥&rage RMBS holdingsof $4,459.2 million and $4,558.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The yield on our portfoliowas 3.37% and 2.64% for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2022 and2021, respectively.
tfernine months ended September 30, 2022, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2021, there wasa $22.5 million
increase ininterestincome dueto the 73 bps increasein the yieldon average RMBS, partially offset by the $98.8 milliondecrease in
average RMBS.
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Our interestincome for the three months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $35.6 million and $34.2 million,respectively.
had ¥erage RMBS holdingsof $3,571.0 million and $5,136.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The yield on our portfoliowas 3.99% and 2.66% for the threemonths ended September 30, 2022 and2021,
thepdetyalpdits ended September 30, 2022, as compared to the threemonths ended September 30, 2021, there wasa $1.4 million
increase ininterestincome duetloe 133 bpsincrease inthe yield on average RMBS, partially offset by the $1,565.3 million decrease
average RMBS. in

The table below presentsthe average portfolio size, income and yields of our respectivesub-portfolios,consisting of structured
and RMBMIBS, for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, and for eachquarter of2022 to dateand 2021.

(8 in thousands)

Average RMBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average RMBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured
RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total

Three Months Ended

September 30,2022 $ 3,458,277 $ 112,760 $ 3,571,037 $ 32,297 $ 3313 § 35,610 3.74% 11.75%  3.99%
June 30, 2022 4,069,334 191,393 4,260,727 31,894 3,374 35,268 3.14% 7.05%  3.31%
March 31, 2022 5,335,353 210,491 5,545,844 40,066 1,791 41,857 3.00% 3.40%  3.02%
December 31, 2021 5,878,376 177,883 6,056,259 42,673 1,748 44,421 2.90% 393%  2.93%
September 30, 2021 5,016,550 119,781 5,136,331 33,111 1,058 34,169 2.64% 3.53%  2.66%
June 30, 2021 4,436,135 68,752 4,504,887 29,286 (32) 29,254 2.64% (0.18)%  2.60%
March 31, 2021 3,997,965 34,751 4,032,716 26,869 (13) 26,856 2.69% (0.15)%  2.66%
Nine Months Ended

September 30,2022 $§ 4,287,655 $ 171,548 $§ 4,459,203 $ 104,257 $ 8,478 $ 112,735 3.24% 6.59%  3.37%
September 30, 2021 4,483,550 74,428 4,557,978 89,266 1,013 90,279 2.65% 1.81%  2.64%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had averageoutstanding borrowings of $4,304.0 million and $4,367.0 million and total interestexpense of $32.2 millionand
millfh Kor the nine monthsended September30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Ouraverage costof funds was 1.00% for the nine
sRdSeptember30, 2022, compared to 0.15% for the comparableperiod in2021. The $27.1 million increasein interest expense was
due to the 85 bps increasein the averagecost of funds, partially offset by the$63.0 milliondecrease in average outstanding
boriewvihgnine months ended September30, 2022, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2021.

Our economicinterest expense was $26.4 million and $15.5 millionfor the ninemonths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Therewas a 35 bps increasein the averageeconomic cost of fundsto 0.82% for the ninemonths ended September 30,
2022, from 0.47% for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021.

We had averageoutstanding borrowings of $3,446.4 million and $4,864.3 million and total interestexpense of $21.4 millionand
millfonor the three months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Ouraverage cost of fundswas 2.48% and 0.13% for
thesfths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Therewas a 235 bps increase in the averagecost of fundsand a $1,417.9
million decreasein average outstandingborrowings during the three monthsended September30, 2022, compared to the three
B September30, 2021.

Our economic interest expense was $16.3 million and $2.8 millionfor the threemonths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,

respectively. Therewas a 166 bps increase in the averageeconomic cost of fundsto 1.89% for the three monthsended September30,
2022 from 0.23% for the three months ended September 30, 2021.
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Since all of our repurchaseagreements are short-term,changes in market ratesdirectly affectour interestexpense. Ouraverage
of figed$ calculated on a GAAP basis was 29 bps abovethe averageone-month LIBOR and 81 bps below the average six-month
FB8Rquarterended September30, 2022. Our average economic costof funds was 30 bpsbelow the average one-month LIBOR
a4 bps belowthe average six-month LIBOR for the quarterended September30, 2022. The average term to maturityof the
PR greements was 29 days at September30, 2022 and 27 daysat December31, 2021.

The tables below presentthe average balance of borrowings outstanding, interest expense andaverage costof funds, and average
one-month and six-month LIBOR rates for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, and for each quarter in2022 to date
20d1 on botha GAAP and economic basis.

(8 in thousands)

Average Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
Balance of GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Borrowings Basis Basis Basis Basis

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 3,446,420 $ 21,361 $ 16,318 2.48% 1.89%
June 30, 2022 4,111,544 8,180 6,184 0.80% 0.60%
March 31, 2022 5,354,107 2,655 3,942 0.20% 0.29%
December 31, 2021 5,728,988 2,023 9,972 0.14% 0.70%
September 30, 2021 4,864,287 1,570 2,818 0.13% 0.23%
June 30, 2021 4,348,192 1,556 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 4,304,024 $ 32,196 $ 26,444 1.00% 0.82%
September 30, 2021 4,367,037 5,067 15,463 0.15% 0.47%

Average GAAP Cost of Funds  Average Economic Cost of Funds

Relative to Average Relative to Average
Average LIBOR One-Month Six-Month One-Month Six-Month
One-Month _Six-Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022 2.19% 3.29% 0.29% (0.81)% (0.30)% (1.40)%
June 30, 2022 0.93% 1.90% (0.13)% (1.10)% (0.33)% (1.30)%
March 31, 2022 0.25% 0.76% (0.05)% (0.56)% 0.04% 0.47)%
December 31, 2021 0.09% 0.23% 0.05% (0.09)% 0.61% 0.47%
September 30, 2021 0.09% 0.16% 0.04% (0.03)% 0.14% 0.07%
June 30, 2021 0.10% 0.18% 0.04% (0.04)% 0.51% 0.43%
March 31, 2021 0.13% 0.23% 0.07% (0.03)% 0.49% 0.39%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 1.12% 1.98% (0.12)% (0.98)% (0.30)% (1.16)%
September 30, 2021 0.10% 0.19% 0.05% (0.04)% 0.37% 0.28%
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Gains or Losses
The table below presentsour gains or losses for the nineand three months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Realized (losses) gains on sales of RMBS $ (132,672)$ (3,068)$ (129,604)$  (66,143)$ 2977 $  (69,120)
Unrealized losses on RMBS (692,781)  (107,386)  (585,395)  (212,221) (11,239)  (200,982)
Total losses on RMBS (825,453)  (110,454)  (714,999)  (278,364) (8,262)  (270,102)
Gains on interest rate futures 207,681 852 206,829 84,713 574 84,139
Gains on interest rate swaps 172,069 12,446 159,623 65,966 3,000 62,966
(Losses) gains on payer swaptions (short positions) (80,183) 3,507 (83,690) (35,239) 2,295 (37,534)
Gains on payer swaptions (long positions) 150,445 5,477 144,968 59,131 1,767 57,364
Gains (losses) on interest rate caps 988 - 988 (499) - (499)
Gains (losses) on interest rate floors - 1,345 (1,345) - 45 (45)
Gains (losses) on TBA securities (short positions) 14,194 864 13,330 10,642 (2,306) 12,948
Gains (losses) on TBA securities (long positions) 1,200 (8,559) 9,759 106 - 106
Total gains from derivative instruments 466,394 15,932 450,462 184,820 5,375 179,445

We invest in RMBS with the intent to earn netincome from the realizedyield on thoseassets overtheir related funding and
costheshgdngt for thepurpose of making shortterm gains from sales. However, we have sold, and may continueto sell, existing
assgtirénewassets, whichour managementbelieves mighthave higherrisk-adjustedreturns inlight of currentor anticipatedinterest
fatkfral governmentprograms or general economic conditionsor to manageour balance sheet as partof our asset/liability
veanagonuting the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and2021, we received proceedsof $2,731.5 million and $2,598.9
raghieaively, fromthe sales of RMBS. During the three months ended September30, 2022 and 2021, we received proceeds of $796.9
million and $918.0 million,respectively, fromthe sales of RMBS.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on RMBS are driven in part by changesin yields andinterest rates, the spreads that
Agency RMBStrade relativeto comparableduration U.S. Treasuriesor swaps, as well as varying levelsof demand for RMBS, which
tHepticing of the securitiesin our portfolio. The unrealizedgains and losses on RMBS may also includethe premium lost as aresult
pfepayments on the underlyingmortgages, decreasing unrealized gains or increasing unrealized losses as speeds or premiums
inerhesextent RMBS are carried at a discountto par, unrealizedgains or losses on RMBS wouldalso include discount accreted as a
ofSptepaymentson the underlyingmortgages, increasing unrealized gains or decreasing unrealized losses as speeds on discounts
increase. Gains and losses on interestrate futurescontracts are affected by changes in implied forward rates duringthe reporting
Péidadble below presentshistorical interest rate data for each quarter endduring 2022 to date and 2021.

5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 30 Year Three

U.S. Treasury U.S. Treasury Fixed-Rate Fixed-Rate Month

Ratd? Ratd? Mortgage Raf® Mortgage Raf? LIBOR

September 30, 2022 4.04% 3.80% 5.35% 6.11% 3.45%
June 30, 2022 3.00% 2.97% 4.65% 5.52% 1.97%
March 31, 2022 2.42% 2.33% 3.39% 4.17% 0.84%
December 31, 2021 1.26% 1.51% 2.35% 3.10% 0.21%
September 30, 2021 1.00% 1.53% 2.18% 2.90% 0.12%
June 30, 2021 0.87% 1.44% 2.27% 2.98% 0.13%
March 31, 2021 0.94% 1.75% 2.39% 3.08% 0.19%

(1) Historical 5 and 10 Year U.S. Treasury Rates are obtained from quoted end of day prices on the Chicago Board Options Exchange.
(2) Historical 30 Year and 15 Year Fixed Rate Mortgage Rates are obtained from Freddie Mac’s Primary Mortgage Market Survey.
(3) Historical LIBOR is obtained from the Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark Administration Ltd.

36



Expenses

For the nineand three months ended September 30, 2022, the Company’stotal operatingexpenses were approximately$14.9
and 881P@illion, respectively,compared to approximately $10.9 millionand $3.7 million, respectively, for the nineand three months
sedednber 30, 2021. The table below presentsa breakdownof operatingexpenses forthe nine and three months ended September 30,
2022 and 2021.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Management fees $ 7,881 $ 5,569 $ 2,312 $ 2,616 $ 2,156 $ 460
Overhead allocation 1,482 1,189 293 522 390 132
Accrued incentive compensation 763 884 (121) 212 259 47)
Directors fees and liability insurance 929 874 55 308 279 29
Audit, legal and other professional fees 899 832 67 293 212 81
Direct REIT operating expenses 2,281 1,024 1,257 1,064 309 755
Other administrative 624 514 110 203 69 134
Total expenses $ 14,859 $ 10,886 $ 3973 § 5218 $ 3,674 $ 1,544

Direct REIT operating expenses were higher in both the nine and three month periods ended September 30, 2022, as
the eamwpeeibtiy in 2021 primarily due to increased commissions and fees related to the Company’s interest rate derivative
positions.

We are externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuant to the terms of a management
agreement. The management agreement has been renewed through February 20, 2023 and provides for automatic one-year
eptedsiomereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under the terms of the management agreement, the Manager is
responsible for administering the business activities and day-to-day operations ofthe Company. The Manager receives a monthly
management fee in the amount of:

One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month end equity, as defined in the management
GHEINEM:h of 1.25% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $250 million and less than or equal to $500
million, and

e One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $500 million.

Should the Company terminate the management agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to
timedirhe average annual management fee, as defined in the management agreement, before or on the last day of the term of the
agreement.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay the Manager the
Company’s pro rata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement.

On April 1, 2022, pursuant to the third amendment to the management agreement entered into on November 16, 2021, the
Manager began providing certain repurchase agreement trading, clearing and administrative services to the Company that had
peeviously provided by AVM, L.P. under an agreement terminated on March 31, 2022. In consideration for such services, the
wampa#Yhe following fees to the Manager:

e A daily fee equal to the outstanding principal balance of repurchase agreement fundingin place as of the end of such day
multiplied by 1.5 basis points for the amount of aggregate outstanding principal balance less than or equal to $5 billion,
andtiplied by 1.0 basis point for any amount of aggregate outstanding principal balance in excess of $5 billion, and

e A fee for the clearing and operational services provided by personnel of the Manager equal to $10,000 per month.
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The following table summarizes the management fee and overhead allocation expenses for the nine months ended September
20220nd 2021, and for each quarter in 2022 to date and 2021.

(8 in thousands)

Average Average Adyvisory Services
Orchid Orchid Management Overhead

Three Months Ended MBS Equity Fee Allocation Total
September 30, 2022 $ 3,571,037 $ 839,935 $ 2,616 $ 522 % 3,138
June 30, 2022 4,260,727 866,539 2,631 519 3,150
March 31, 2022 5,545,844 853,576 2,634 441 3,075
December 31, 2021 6,056,259 806,382 2,587 443 3,030
September 30, 2021 5,136,331 672,384 2,156 390 2,546
June 30, 2021 4,504,887 542,679 1,792 395 2,187
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 456,687 1,621 404 2,025
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022 $ 4,459,203 $ 853,350 $ 7,881 $ 1,482 § 9,363
September 30, 2021 4,557,978 557,250 5,569 1,189 6,758
Financial Condition:

Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of September30, 2022, our RMBS portfolio consisted of $3,201.2 million of Agency RMBSat fair valueand had a weighted
average couponon assets of 3.31%. During the nine months ended September30, 2022, we received principal repayments of $376.2
million comparedto $413.0 million for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021. The average three monthprepayment speeds for
thearters ended September30, 2022 and 2021 were 6.5% and 12.4%, respectively.

The followingtable presentsthe 3-month constant prepaymentrate (“CPR”)experienced on our structuredand PT RMBS sub-
portfolios, on an annualizedbasis, for the quarterlyperiods presented.CPR is amethod of expressing the prepaymentrate fora
puyltghgeassumes thata constant fraction of the remainingprincipal is prepaid each month or year. Specifically,the CPR in the chart
below representsthe three month prepaymentrate of thesecurities in the respectiveasset category.

Structured

PT RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%)
September 30, 2022 6.1 10.4 6.5
June 30, 2022 8.3 13.7 9.4
March 31, 2022 8.1 19.5 10.7
December 31, 2021 9.0 24.6 11.4
September 30, 2021 9.8 25.1 12.4
June 30, 2021 10.9 29.9 12.9
March 31, 2021 9.9 40.3 12.0
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The followingtables summarizecertain characteristicsof the Company’sPT RMBS and structured RMBS as of September 30,
and BEember31, 2021:

(8 in thousands)

Weighted
Percentage Average
of Weighted Maturity
Fair Entire Average in Longest

Asset Category Value Portfolio  Coupon Months Maturity
September 30, 2022
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 3,150,403 98.4% 3.30% 341 1-Aug-52
Interest-Only Securities 50,274 1.6% 3.72% 278  25-Nov-51
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 537 0.0% 1.51% 289  15-Jun-42
Total Mortgage Assets $ 3,201,214 100.0% 3.31% 336 1-Aug-52
December 31, 2021
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 6,298,189 96.7% 2.93% 342 1-Dec-51
Interest-Only Securities 210,382 3.2% 3.40% 263 25-Jan-52
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 2,524 0.1% 3.75% 300  15-Jun-42
Total Mortgage Assets $ 6,511,095 100.0% 3.03% 325 25-Jan-52
(8 in thousands)

September 30, 2022 December 31, 2021
Percentage of Percentage of

Agency Fair Value Entire Portfolio Fair Value Entire Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 2,231,699 69.7% $§ 4,719,349 72.5%
Freddie Mac 969,515 30.3% 1,791,746 27.5%
Total Portfolio $ 3,201,214 100.0% $ 6,511,095 100.0%

September 30, 2022 December 31, 2021

Weighted Average Pass-through Purchase Price $ 107.06 $ 107.19
Weighted Average Structured Purchase Price $ 18.08 $ 15.21
Weighted Average Pass-through Current Price $ 89.44 § 105.31
Weighted Average Structured Current Price $ 1732 § 14.08
Effective Duratiéh 5.800 3.390

(1) Effective duration is the approximate percentage change in price for a 100 bps change in rates. An effective duration of 5.800 indicates that
ffiterest rate increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 5.800% decrease in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment
pofidplanber 30, 2022. An effective duration of 3.390 indicates that an interest rate increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 3.390%
decrease in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2021. These figures include the structured
$eahEpestfolio, but do not include the effect of the Company’s funding cost hedges. Effective duration quotes for individual investments
atttained from The Yield Book, Inc.

The followingtable presentsa summary of portfolioassets acquiredduring the nine months ended September30, 2022 and 2021,
including securities purchased during the period that settled afterthe end ofthe period, if any.

(3 in thousands)

2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
Average  Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pass-through RMBS $ 622,535 § 100.66 424% § 4,871,121 § 106.96 1.56%
Structured RMBS - - - 125,728 13.04 3.80%
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Borrowings

As of September30, 2022, we had establishedborrowing facilities in the repurchaseagreement market with a number of
banleoan@erdigd financial institutionsand had borrowingsin place with20 of these counterparties. None of theselenders are affiliated
étlCompany. Theseborrowings are secured by the Company’sRMBS and cash, and bear interestat prevailingmarket rates. We
belie¥mblishedrepurchase agreement borrowing facilities provide borrowingcapacity in excess of our needs.

As of September30, 2022, we had obligationsoutstanding under the repurchase agreements of approximately $3,133.9 million
net Wéthhtedaverage borrowingcost of 3.00%. The remainingmaturity of our outstandingrepurchase agreement obligationsranged
frean1 22 days, witha weighted average remainingmaturity of29 days. Securing the repurchaseagreement obligations as of
Soptnbeie RMBS with an estimated fair value, including accrued interest, of approximately $3,206.4 million and a weighted
avetiagsy of 345 months,and cash pledged to counterpartiesof approximately $49.4 million. Through October 27,2022, we have
heenblain our repurchase facilities with comparableterms to those that existed at September 30, 2022, with maturitiesthrough
Sonuws.

The table below presents information about our period end, maximum and average balances of borrowings for each quarter in
2022 to date and 2021.

(8 in thousands)

Difference Between Ending

Ending Maximum Average Borrowings and
Balance of Balance of Balance of Average Borrowings

Three Months Ended Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Amount Percent

September 30, 2022 $ 3,133,861 $ 4,047,606 $ 3,446,420 $ (312,559) 9.07)%
June 30, 2022 3,758,980 4,464,544 4,111,544 (352,564) (8.57)%
March 31, 2022 4,464,109 6,244,106 5,354,107 (889,998) (16.62)%)
December 31, 2021 6,244,106 6,419,689 5,728,988 515,118 8.99%
September 30, 2021 5,213,869 5,214,254 4,864,287 349,582 7.19%
June 30, 2021 4,514,704 4,517,953 4,348,192 166,512 3.83%
March 31, 2021 4,181,680 4,204,935 3,888,633 293,047 7.54%

(1) The lower ending balance relative to the average balance during the quarter ended March 31, 2022 reflects the disposal of RMBS pledged
@bdllateral. During the quarter ended March 31, 2022, the Company’s investment in RMBS decreased $510.4 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our abilityto turn non-cashassets into cash, purchaseadditional investments,repay principaland intereston
fundbevkaiéndstulfill margincalls and pay dividends. We have bothinternal and externalsources of liquidity. However, our material
unused sourcesof liquidityinclude cashbalances, unencumberedassets and our ability to sell encumberedassets toraise cash. Our
balance sheetalso generatesliquidity on an on-goingbasis throughpayments of principal and interestwe receive on our RMBS
Matiadment believes thatwe currentlyhave sufficientliquidity and capital resources available for (a) theacquisition of additional
investments consistent with the size and natureof our existingRMBS portfolio, (b) the repaymentson borrowingsand (c) the
BRIISRIND the extentrequired for our continuedqualificationas a REIT. We may also generate liquidity from time to time by
sglling edebt securitiesin public offerings or private placements.
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Internal Sources of Liquidity

Our internalsources of liquidity include our cash balances,unencumberedassets and our abilityto liquidateour encumbered
holdie@eriQur balance sheet also generates liquidity on an on-goingbasis throughpayments of principaland interestwe receive on
RWIBS portfolio. Because our PT RMBS portfolioconsists entirelyof governmentand agency securities, we do notanticipate having
difficulty convertingour assets to cash shouldour liquidityneeds ever exceed our immediately available sources of cash. Our
RMBBrpdrtfolioalso consistsentirely of governmentalagency securities,although they typicallydo not tradewith comparablebid /
dpkeads as PT RMBS. However, we anticipatethat we wouldbe able to liquidate such securitiesreadily, even in distressed markets,
although we would likely do so at pricesbelow wheresuch securitiescould be soldin a more stable market. To enhance our liquidity
€y@her, we maypledge aportion of our structured RMBS as part of arepurchase agreement funding, but retain the cash inlieu of
A6dWiIGAg] assets. In this waywe can, ata modest cost, retainhigher levelsof cash on hand and decrease the likelihoodwe will have
ell assetsin a distressedmarket in order toraise cash.

Our strategy for hedging our funding costs typicallyinvolves taking shortpositions in interestrate futures, treasury futures,
swapslerasitaigate swaptionsor other instruments. When the market causesthese short positions to decline in value we are required
fAeet margin calls with cash. This canreduce our liquidity position to the extentother securitiesin our portfoliomove in pricein such
aeWe donot receive enough cash via margin calls to offset the derivativerelated margincalls. Ifthis were to occur in sufficient
magnitude, the loss of liquidity might force us to reducethe size of the leveredportfolio, pledge additionalstructured securities to
faisds orrisk operatingthe portfoliowith less liquidity.

External Sources of Liquidity

Our primary external sources of liquidity are our abilityto (i) borrowunder masterrepurchase agreements, (ii) use the TBA
markeewridlyiii) sell our equity or debt securities in public offerings or private placements. Our borrowingcapacity willvary over
iHne@s tA%ueof our interestearning assetsvaries. Our master repurchase agreements have no stated expiration, but can be terminated
ahy time atour option or at the option ofthe counterparty. However, once a definitive repurchase agreement under a master
sepusehesthas been entered into, it generallymay not be terminated by either party. A negotiatedtermination can occur, but may
RQIY8 be paid by the party seeking to terminate the repurchaseagreement transaction.

Under ourrepurchase agreement funding arrangements,we are requiredto post marginat the initiationof the borrowing. The
postBiFgptesentsthe haircut, which is a percentage of the marketvalue of thecollateral pledged. To the extent the marketvalue of
theet collateralizingthe financingtransaction declines, the market value of ourposted marginwill be insufficientand we will be
prsseigadifional collateral. Conversely, ifthe market value of theasset pledgedincreases in value, we would be over collateralizedand
would be entitled to have excess margin returnedto us by thecounterparty. Our lenders typically value our pledged securitiesdaily
tasure the adequacy of our margin and make margincalls as needed,as do we. Typically, but notalways, the parties agreeto a
thiBEmsIMamount for margin calls so as to avoidthe need for nuisancemargin callson a daiB@ubasisster repurchase agreements
do not specifythe haircut;rather haircutsare determinedon an individualrepurchase transactionbasis. Throughoutthe nine months
ended September30, 2022, haircuts on our pledged collateral remained stable and as of September30, 2022, our weightedaverage
haircut was approximately4.6% ofthe value of our collateral.

TBAs representa form of off-balance sheet financingand are accounted for as derivativeinstruments.(See Note 4 to our
Stat&angiad this Form 10-Q for additionaldetails on our TBAs). Under certainmarket conditions, it may be uneconomicalfor us to
TBlAp3into future monthsand we may need to takeor make physicaldelivery of the underlyingsecurities. If we wererequired to take
physical deliveryto settle a long TBA,we would have to fund our total purchase commitment with cash or other financing sources
#ad ity position couldbe negativelyimpacted.
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Our TBAsare also subject to margin requirementsgoverned by the Mortgage-BackedSecurities Division ("MBSD")of the
by oild@aner Securities Forward Transaction Agreements (“MSFTAs”), whichmay establishmargin levelsin excess of the MBSD.
PHs¥isions require thatwe establishan initial margin basedon the notionalvalue of the TBA, whichis subjectto increase if the
¢atimaatad of our TBAsor the estimated fair value of our pledgedcollateral declines. The MBSD has the solediscretion to determine
thue of our TBAs and of the pledgedcollateral securing suchcontracts. In the eventof a margin call, we must generallyprovide
adilitiendlon the same business day.

Settlement of our TBA obligations by taking delivery ofthe underlyingsecurities as well as satisfying margin requirementscould
negatively impact our liquidity position. However, since we do notuse TBA dollarroll transactionsas our primarysource of
beldaengavwe will haveadequate sources of liquidity to meetsuch obligations.

We invest aportion of our capital in structured Agency RMBS. We generally do not applyleverageto this portionof our
levepsgtlilirditén structuredsecurities replaces theleverage obtained by acquiringPT securitiesand funding them in the repurchase
market. This structured RMBS strategyhas been a core elementof the Company’soverall investmentstrategy since inception.
BWewgverandmay continueto pledge a portion of our structuredRMBS in order toraise our cash levels, but generallywill not pledge
eesgities in orderto acquire additional assets.

In future periods, we expectto continue to finance our activitiesin a manner that is consistentwith our current operationsthrough
repurchase agreements. As of September30, 2022, we had cash and cash equivalentsof $214.2 million. We generated cash flows of
$496.2 millionfrom principaland interestpayments on our RMBS and had averagerepurchase agreements outstanding of $4,304.0
thilignthe nine months ended September30, 2022.

As describedmore fully below, we may also access liquidity by selling our equity or debt securitiesin public offerings or private
placements.

Stockholders’ Equity

On August 4, 2020, we entered into the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents pursuant to which
could®ffer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of our common stock in transactions
thete deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 5,538,730 shares under the
August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $150.0 million, and net proceeds of
approximately $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June 2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P.
relafMgrgamig,offer and sale of 1,520,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock
R ompany pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $26.00 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a
3Ptidayto purchase up to an additional 228,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan
exercised in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 1,748,000 shares of our common stock occurred on January
2621, with proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into the March 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan, relating to the offer and sale
1,600£000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock from the Company pursuant to the
March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $27.25 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to
atlditional 240,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on March
3021. The closing of the offering of 1,840,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with proceeds to us of
approximately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses payable.
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On June 22, 2021, we entered into the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents pursuant to which we
couldayfer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares of our common stock in transactions
thate deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 9,881,467 shares under the
June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $250.0 million, and net proceeds of
approximately $246.2 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in October2021.

On October 29, 2021, we entered into the October 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents pursuant to
we MAYfer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares of our common stock in
transaetidasmed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. Through September 30, 2022, we issued a
#1181167,140 shares under the October 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $78.3
million, and net proceeds of approximately $77.0 million, after commissions and fees.

Outlook
Economic Summary

The evolutionof economic and market developmentspivoted in the third quarter 0o£f2022. Trends in place since late 2021 have
changed inthe third quarter. The outlook for the domesticeconomy ofthe United States, particularlywith respectto inflation, the
lavsl@t rates and expectations for monetarypolicy from the Fed changedduring the quarter. As the secondquarter 0f2022 ended,
therket expectedthat the monetary tightening policies implementedby the Fed to control inflation would soon succeed, andthat by
2003 the Fed would likely startto unwind their rate increases in order to avertan economic slowdown resulting from these policies.
dhalyst forthe changes that occurredduring the third quarterof 2022 wasclear evidencethat not only was inflation persisting, but
tha§ becomingmore broad based and entrenched. As the Fed and the variousmembers ofthe FOMC became awareof this, their
pohligents consistentlysought to dispel the notion that they would be easing monetary policy inearly 2023 as the futuresmarkets
Pie€ng. As the quarterunfolded and the inflationdata continuedto reflect this trend, the market grew to accept that the Fed would
haive the Fed Funds target furtherinto restrictiveterritory. The inflationdata for September of 2022, released in early Octoberof
303k vas strong and broad based. The marketnow expects the terminalrate to approach5% and the Fed to raisethe Fed Fundsrate
R¥least 125basis points during the fourth quarterof 2022 alone. The incomingeconomic data— other thaninflationarydata — has
generally been very strong as well, implyingthe Fed rateincreases have yet to have an impacton the economyother than the most
sRisitive sectors.

Contributingto the changein economic and interestrate trendswere developmentsabroad, particularlyin Europe and the United
Kingdom. While inflationhas proven to be more robust and challengingto control in the U.S.,it has been even more so in Europe
aiskt of the world outsideof China, which is grapplingwith persistentCOVID-19 cases that have forced the governmentto
jptdradtientlyrious populationcenters. The warin Ukraine has contributedsignificantlyto food and energy price pressuresglobally,
Baoffan inthe U.S. The resultis essentiallyall centralbanks acrossthe globe— outside of Chinaand Japan— are raisingrates. Like the
Fed, the central banks’ efforts have yet to slow inflation and more rate hikes are very likely. Food and energy inflationposes
péei§ipaaln governmentswho are eager to ease the burden of elevated prices for essentialslike food and energy, butare constrained
because theirefforts themselvesmight increaseinflationarypressures and run counterto central bank actionsthat are attempting to
constrain economic activityand demand.

A further complicating factor has been the U.S. dollar. As the Fedis forced to continueto raiserates inthe U.S., the dollar has
appreciated against all other currencies. This in turnforces othercentral banksto raise rates to protect theirown currencies,often
ah@Weyond what their domestic economiccircumstancesmight warrant.

Risk sentimentis at extremelydepressed levels and all asset classes acrossthe financialmarkets havegenerated negative year-to-

date returnsfor 2022, outside of energy and certain foodcommodities. Economic growthis expectedto continue to slow overthe
bélgregear, both in the U.S. and globally, and likelycontractin 2023.
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Interest Rates

As the marketincorporatedinflation data and the Fed’s responsethrough thesecond quarterof 2022, interestrates began to rise
materially. On August 1, 2022, the 10-year U.S. Treasury Note closed with a yieldof 2.5759%,shortly beforethe FOMC began to
RBIREE expectationsthat the Fed would pivot away from their tightening and begin to lower the Fed Fundsrate in early2023. The
stield@rrear U.S. Treasury Note closedjust above 3.83% on September 30, 2022, and surpassed 4% in Octoberof 2022. This
ingsamsech less than the increasein short-termrates. Interestrates on U.S. Treasury Note maturitiesinside one year increasedby well
over 100 basis pointsand by morethan 160 basis points for maturitiesof three months orless — in each case by the end of the third
quarter 0£2022. In the case of U.S. Treasury Note maturities of three or fewer months, such increases are over 230 basis pointsas of
October 26,2022. As of September30, 2022, market pricingimplied theterminal ratefor the currentcycle would be approximately
$Athwouldbe reached late in the first quarterof 2023. As of October26, 2022, pricing is for a terminalrate of approximately
do¥38time latein the secondquarter of 2023 and with the Fed Fundsrate still approximately4.40%in early 2024.

The Fed has repeatedly acknowledgedtheir effortsto bring inflation undercontrol and taking the Fed Fundsrate above neutral
caus@dlye economy to enter a recession. They deem these stepsas necessary to prevent inflation from remaininghigher than the
Eed rateof inflation. However, as itappears the Fed will have to increasethe Fed Fundsrate considerablyhigher than was believed
B the case even a few months ago, and central banks acrossthe globe are doing likewise, financial conditions have begun to
dateriquatiity in many financialmarkets has declined. If such trendspersist and evidence appearsthat certainfinancial markets arenot
operating smoothly, or financial conditions are prohibitingeconomic activity fromoperating smoothly, centralbanks may face a
dddgmuantto increase the Fed Funds rate or implementingaccommodationsto permit the smooth operation of financialmarkets and
#eonomy —assuming this were to occur before inflationcould be brought undercontrol. The outcome in such a scenario cannot be
predicted with any confidence.

The Agency RMBS Market

Returns forthe Agency RMBS market for the thirdquarter 02022 were (5.4)% and these returnswere 1.7% lower than
duranpdBbIR swaps. The largest RMBS investorshave generallybeen sellingor decreasingtheir exposureto the sector. Agency
RMBS spreadsrelative to benchmark interest rates increasedto levels observed in March 02020 by the end of the third quarterof
3fidhave exceeded thoselevels in October 0f2022. The largestinvestors of Agency RMBS, the Fed via quantitativeeasing (whichis
gauntitativetightening as the Fed allows theirholdings of Agency RMBSto run-off), large domesticbanks (whichdue to quantitative
tightening by the Fed are experiencingdeclines inreserves/deposits)and large money managers(which have experiencedsignificant
outflows as investors leave fixedincome investments),are collectively causing demand for Agency RMBS to decline materiallyand
thévipead widening. As the U.S. dollar has strengthenedagainst mostother currenciesacross the globe, thereis the chancecertain
central banks— namely the Bank of Japan — may be forced to intervenein the currencymarkets to support theirlocal currency, in this
gag¢yen. They would do so by sellingU.S. dollar-denominatedassets and buying Yen. The only U.S.dollar-denominatedassets they
AW .S, Treasuries and Agency RMBS, and selling these wouldrepresent another sourceof downwardpressure on Agency RMBS.
fdigtive performanceacross the Agency RMBSuniverse was skewed in favor of higher coupon, 30-year securitiesthat are currently
Production by originators. Lower couponsecurities, especially those held in large amounts by the Fed, and which may eventuallybe
B9l¢he Fed, have performedthe worst. These resultsare consistentwith the relative durationof the securities,as higher coupons have
shorter durations,or less sensitivityto movementsin interestrates.

As both thedomestic andthe global economies appear to be slowing,the more credit sensitivesectors of the fixed income
havenaskssinder pressureand are likely to weaken further ifthe economiesdo indeed contract. Actions by the Fed as described
aboyprevent the sector from performingwell in the near term but, if the economy doescontractand enter a recession, the sector could
dell on arelative performancebasis owing to the lack of credit exposure of Agency RMBS. This is consistentwith the sector’s
pistiyednce in a counter-cyclicalmanner —doing well when the economy is soft and relativelypoorly whenthe economy is strong.
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Recent Legislativeand Regulatory Developments

In response to the deteriorationin the marketsfor U.S. Treasuries, Agency RMBS and other mortgageand fixed income markets
resulting from the impacts ofthe COVID-19pandemic, the Fed implementeda program of quantitativeeasing. Through November
e2Ped swascommitted to purchasing $80 billion of U.S. Treasuriesand $40 billionof Agency RMBS each month. In November of
BBgdn ifaperingits net assetpurchases each monthand ended net asset purchases entirely by early Marchof 2022. On May 4,2022,
BOMC announceda plan for reducing the Fed’s balancesheet. In June of 2022, in accordancewith this plan, the Fed began reducing
Bélance sheetby a maximumof $30 billionof U.S. Treasuries and $17.5 billionof Agency RMBS eachmonth. On September 21,
22BOMC announced the Fed’s decisionto continue reducing the balance sheet by amaximum of $60 billion of U.S Treasuriesand
Bafion of Agency RMBS per month.

On January 29, 2021, the CDC issuedguidance extendingeviction moratoriums for coveredpersons putin place by the CARES
throdght March31, 2021. The FHFA subsequentlyextended the foreclosuremoratorium for loans backed by Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mhdcthe evictionmoratorium for real estate ownedby Fannie Mae and FreddieMac until July 31,2021 and September 30, 2021,
respectively. The U.S. Housingand Urban Development Department subsequently extended the FHA foreclosure and eviction
Mdya3aria®2 1, and September30, 2021, respectively. Despite the expirationsof these foreclosuremoratoria, a final ruleadopted by
thEPB on June 28,2021, effectivelyprohibited servicers from initiatinga foreclosurebefore January 1, 2022, in most instances.
Foreclosure activity hasrisen sincethe end of the moratorium,with foreclosurestarts inthe third quarter 02022 up 167%from the
comparable period in 2021, butstill remainingslightly below pre-pandemiclevels.

In January 2019, the Trump administrationmade statementsof its plansto work withCongress to overhaul Fannie Mae and
Madctagddigpectationsto announcea framework for the developmentof a policy for comprehensivehousing financereform soon.On
September 30, 2019, the FHFA announcedthat Fannie Mae and FreddieMac were allowed to increase theircapital buffersto $25
bidi820 billion, respectively, fromthe prior limit of $3 billion each. This step could ultimatelylead to Fannie Mae and FreddieMac
peivgized and representsthe first concrete step on theroad to GSEreform. On June 30,2020, the FHFA released a proposed rule on
Aew regulatory framework for the GSEswhich seeks to implementboth a risk-basedcapital frameworkand minimum leverage
gégifizbments. The final rule on the new capital framework for the GSEswas publishedin the federalregisterin December2020. On
January 14,2021, the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA executed letteragreements allowing the GSEs to continue to retain capital up to
thgirlatory minimums, including buffers, as prescribed in the Decemberrule. These letteragreements provide, in part, (i)there will be
8Rit from conservatorshipuntil all material litigationis settled and the GSEhas common equity Tier 1 capital of at least 3% of its
#seatS Eidwill comply with the FHFA’s regulatory capital framework, (iii) higher-risk single-family mortgage acquisitionswill be
tesiidateidiels,and (iv) the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA will establisha timeline and process for future GSE reform. However, no
HESpULIS or legislationhave beenreleased or enacted with respectto ending the conservatorship,unwinding the GSEs, or materially
reducing the roles of the GSEsin the U.S.mortgage market. On September 14, 2021, the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA suspended
peliginprovisionsin the Januaryagreement, including limits on loans acquired for cash consideration, multifamily loans, loanswith
highgharacteristicsand secondhomes and investment properties. On February 25, 2022, the FHFA publisheda final rule,effective as
Alpril 26,2022, amendingthe GSE capital framework established in December2020 by, among other things, replacing the fixed
bergrqual to 1.5% ofa GSE’s adjustedtotal assetswith a dynamicleverage buffer equal to 50% ofa GSE’s stability capital buffer,
reducing the risk weightfloor from 10% to 5%, and removingthe requirementthat the GSEs mustapply an overalleffectiveness
adjustment to their credit risk transfer exposures. On June 14,2022, the GSEs announcedthat they will each charge a 50 bps fee for
commingled securities issued on or after July 1, 2022to cover the additional capital requiredfor such securities under the GSE
saiHatvork. Industry groups have expressed concern thatthis poses a risk to the fungibilityof the UniformMortgage-Backed Security
(“UMBS”), which could negatively impact liquidityand pricing in the marketfor TBA securities.
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In 2017, policymakers announced that LIBOR will be replacedby December31, 2021. The directivewas spurredby the fact that
banks are uncomfortablecontributingto the LIBOR panel given the shortageof underlyingtransactionson which to base levelsand
thebility associated with submittingan unfoundedlevel. However, the ICE Benchmark Administration, in its capacityas
YURDIIIBOR Has announcedthat it intendsto extend publicationof USD LIBOR (other thanone-week and two-month tenors) by 18
months to June 2023. Notwithstandingthis extension,a joint statementby key regulatoryauthoritiescalls on banksto cease entering
H¥® contractsthat use USD LIBOR as a referencerate by no later than December 31, 2021.

On December 7, 2021, the CFPB released a final rulethat amends Regulation Z, which implemented the Truth in Lending Act,
at addpesdingcessation of LIBOR for both closed-end (e.g., homemortgage) and open-end(e.g., homeequity line of credit) products.
fithe, which mostly becameeffective in April of 2022, establishes requirements for the selectionof replacementindices for existing
lihBEReconsumerloans. Althoughthe rule does notmandate the use of SOFRas the alternativerate, itidentifies SOFR as a
egrperehdeed-end products and states that for open-end products,the CFPB has determinedthat ARRC’s recommended spread-
adjsésbasedon SOFR forconsumer productsto replace the one-month, three-month, or six-month USD LIBOR index “have
hiséotiiaadns that are substantiallysimilar to those ofthe LIBOR indices thatthey are intended to replace.” The CFPB reserved
Jidgevent.on a SOFR-based spread-adjustedreplacement index toreplace the one-year USDLIBOR untilit obtained additional
information.

On March 15,2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR)Act (the “LIBOR Act”) was signed into law as partof the
Appesprselidatenict, 2022 (H.R. 2471). The LIBOR Act provides for a statutoryreplacement benchmark rate for contracts that use
kdBBEchmarkand do not contain any fallback mechanismindependentof LIBOR. Pursuant to the LIBOR Act, SOFR becomes the
Be#chmark rate by operationof law forany such contract. The LIBOR Act establishesa safe harborfrom litigationfor claims arising
8tefated to the use of SOFR as the recommendedbenchmark replacement. The LIBOR Act makes clear that it should notbe
coasEfaedr the use ofany benchmarkon a prospectivebasis.

On July 28,2022, the Fed publisheda proposed rule to implementthe LIBOR Act. Since the GSEs have generally been using
averd@ed8®FRin their newly issued multifamily loans and other structuredproducts, the Fed proposedthat the benchmark
foplagamenRMBS be the 30-day average SOFR plus the applicabletenor spreadadjustment specifiedin the LIBOR Act. Comments
{RE proposedrule closed August 29,2022, and any final rule will go into effect30 days afterpublication in the Federal Register.

The LIBOR Act also attempts to forestallchallenges that it is impairing contracts. It provides that the discontinuanceof LIBOR
autodAghiStatutory transition to a replacementrate neitherimpairs oraffects the rights ofa party toreceive paymentunder such
gonHel%s a party to discharge their performanceobligations or to declarea breach of contract. It amends the Trust Indenture Act of
19 3fhte that the “the right of any holderof any indenturesecurity to receive payment ofthe principalof and intereston such indenture
security shallnot be deemedto be impairedor affected” by applicationof the LIBOR Act to any indenture security.

Effective January1, 2021, Fannie Mae, in alignmentwith FreddieMac, extendedthe timeframefor its delinquentloan buyout
for $@kLy-Family Uniform Mortgage-BackedSecurities (UMBS) and Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) from four consecutively
mussdy paymentsto twenty-fourconsecutivelymissed monthly payments (i.e.,24 months past due). This new timeframe applied to
outstanding single-family pools and newly issuedsingle-familypools and was firstreflected when January2021 factorswere
thlefsadbrbusiness day in February2021.

For Agency RMBS investors,when a delinquentloan is boughtout of apool of mortgageloans, the removal ofthe loan from the
is thea@lme as a total prepayment of the loan. The respective GSEs anticipated,however, that delinquent loans will be repurchasedin
most cases before the 24-month deadline underone of the following exceptions listed below.

* aloan thatis paid in full, or where therelated lienis released and/or the note debtis satisfiedor forgiven;

» aloan repurchasedby a seller/servicerunder applicableselling and servicingrequirements;

* aloan enteringa permanent modification,which generallyrequires it to be removed fromthe MBS (duringany modification
periddathe loan will remain inthe MBS untilthe trial period ends);
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* aloan subjectto a shortsale or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure;or
* aloan referredto foreclosure.

Because ofthese exceptions,the GSEs believe basedon prevailingassumptions and market conditions this change will have only
marginal impacton prepaymentspeeds, in aggregate. Cohort levelimpacts may vary. For example, more than half of loansreferred
foreclosure are historicallyreferred within six months of delinquency. The degree to which speedsare affected depends on
telngusagdwerresponse, and referralto foreclosuretimelines.

The scope and nature of the actionsthe U.S. governmentor the Fed will ultimatelyundertake are unknownand will continue to
evolve

Effect on Us
Regulatory developments,movements in interestrates and prepaymentrates affectus in many ways, includingthe following:
Effects on our Assets

A change in or eliminationof the guaranteestructure of Agency RMBS may increase ourcosts (if, for example, guarantee fees
increase) or require us to changeour investmentstrategy altogether. For example,the eliminationof the guaranteestructure of
REEBSYmay cause us to change our investment strategy to focus on non-Agency RMBS, whichin turn wouldrequire us to
sigpdfis@Btlymonitoring of the creditrisks of ourinvestments in additionto interestrate and prepayment risks.

Lower long-terminterestrates can affect the value of ourAgency RMBSin a number of ways. If prepaymentrates are relatively
(dudoi¥ypart, to the refinancingproblems describedabove), lowerlong-term interest rates can increase thevalue of higher-coupon
RBEBSY This is because investors typically placea premium on assets with yields that are higher thanmarket yields. Although lower
leAgrinterestrates may increase asset values in our portfolio,we may notbe able to invest new funds in similarly-yieldingassets.

If prepaymentlevels increase, the value of our Agency RMBS affectedby such prepaymentsmay decline. This is becausea
prepRiifdRthccelerates the effectiveterm of an Agency RMBS, which wouldshorten the period duringwhich an investor would
séest¥emarket returns (assumingthe yield on the prepaidasset is higher than market yields). Also, prepaymentproceeds may notbe
#blse reinvestedin similar-yieldingassets. AgencyRMBS backedby mortgageswith high interestrates are more susceptibleto
prepaymentrisk because holders of those mortgages are most likely torefinance to a lower rate. I0s and I10s, however, may be the
Bfb&gency RMBS most sensitive to increased prepaymentrates. Becausethe holder of an 10 or 11O receivesno principal payments,
thdues of I0s and IIOsare entirelydependent on the existenceof a principalbalance on the underlyingmortgages. If the principal
hatanegnateddue to prepayment,IOs and IIOsessentially become worthless. Although increased prepayment rates can negatively
ééeotilue of our I0s and 110s, they have the oppositeeffect on POs. BecausePOs act like zero-coupon bonds, meaningthey are
purchased at a discountto their par value and have an effective interestrate based on the discountand the termof the underlyingloan,
filcrease in prepaymentrates wouldreduce the effective termof our POs and acceleratethe yields earned on those assets, which
wierddse ournet income.

Higher long-termrates can also affect the value of our AgencyRMBS. As long-termrates rise, rates availableto borrowersalso
Thigteads to cause prepaymentactivity to slow and extend the expected averagelife of mortgagecash flows. As the expected
fife19ehe mortgage cash flows increases, coupled withhigher discountrates, the value of AgencyRMBS declines. Some of the
instruments the Companyuses to hedgeour Agency RMBS assets,such as interestrate futures,swaps and swaptions, are stable
average lifeinstruments. This means that to theextent we use such instrumentsto hedge our Agency RMBS assets,our hedges may
B@&quately protect us from price declines, and thereforemay negativelyimpact our book value. It is for this reason we use interest
eadpirities in our portfolio. As interestrates rise, the expectedaverage lifeof these securities increases, causing generally positive
pitsements as the numberand size of the cash flows increasethe longer the underlyingmortgages remain outstanding. This makes
interest only securitiesdesirable hedge instrumentsfor pass-through Agency RMBS.
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As describedabove, the Agency RMBSmarket beganto experiencesevere dislocationsin mid-March2020 as aresult ofthe
economic, health and market turmoilbrought aboutby COVID-19.0n March 23,2020, the Fed announcedthat it wouldpurchase
RBEBSyand U.S. Treasuriesin the amountsneeded to support smoothmarket functioning,which largelystabilized the Agency RMBS
market, butended these purchases in March 2022 and announcedplans to reduceits balancesheet. The Fed’s plannedreduction of its
balance sheetcould negativelyimpact our investment portfolio. Further, the moratoriums on foreclosuresand evictionsdescribed
ghdiVigkely delay potentialdefaults on loans thatwould otherwisebe bought out of AgencyRMBS poolsas describedabove.
Beneriagarsolution of the foreclosureor evictions, when andif it occurs, these loans may be removedfrom the pool into which
thebe securitized. If this wereto occur, it wouldhave the effect of delayinga prepaymenton the Company’ssecurities until such time.
the extentthe Company’s Agency RMBS assets were acquired at a premiumto par, this willtend to increasethe realizedyield on the
asset in question. To the extent they were acquiredat a discount, this will tend to decreasethe realizedyield on theasset in question.

Because we base our investment decisions on risk managementprinciples rather than anticipatedmovements in interestrates, ina
volatile interestrate environmentwe may allocatemore capitalto structured Agency RMBSwith shorterdurations. We believe these
securities have a lowersensitivity to changes in long-term interestrates than other asset classes. We may attemptto mitigateour
exposure to changes in long-terminterestrates by investing in I0s and I1Os, which typically have differentsensitivitiesto changesin
leng-interestrates than PT RMBS, particularlyPT RMBS backedby fixed-ratemortgages.

Effects on our borrowingcosts

We leverage our PT RMBSportfolio and a portion of our structured Agency RMBSwith principalbalances throughthe use of
ternPh@ptrchaseagreement transactions. The interestrates on our debt aredetermined by the shortterm interestrate markets.
Ineigaesd Funds rate, SOFR or LIBOR typically increase ourborrowing costs, whichcould affect our interestrate spreadif there is
Borrespondingincrease in the interestwe earnon our assets. This would be most prevalentwith respectto our AgencyRMBS backed
BiXed rate mortgage loans becausethe interestrate on a fixed-rate mortgage loan does not change even though market ratesmay
change.

In orderto protect our net interestmargin againstincreases in short-terminterestrates, we may enter into interestrate swaps,
econ$higdhlly convert our floating-raterepurchase agreement debt to fixed-ratedebt, or utilize otherhedging instrumentssuch as
Eurodollar, FedFunds and T-Note futures contracts or interest rate swaptions.

Summary

In a continuationof the extremelyturbulent and volatilemarket conditionsthat have existed sincethe onset of the COVID-19
pandemic, during the third quarterof 2022 the state of the markets and the outlookchanged materially. The perceptionof inflationon
het of theFed has shapedthe rates markets, currencymarkets andthe outlook for the economysince the spring of2021. This is
WliRRion first began to acceleratein the U.S. During the third quarterthe Fed’s outlook,or more accurately, the market’s perception
tHeBad sawinflation, changed significantly. Through early August of2022 the markets perceivedthat, whileinflation was not
thanbiddrxouldbe able to dampen demandby raising rates and cause inflationto decrease back towardsthe Fed’s long-termtarget of
Blether, the market anticipatedthis would happen by early in 2023 and that the Fed wouldthen start to loosen monetary policy
sherghfter. The Fed, through repeated public commentsby variousFed officials and ultimatelyby the Chairmanat the Fed’s annual
banket symposiumin Jackson Hole, Wyomingin late August,stressed thatthis was notgoing to be the case. Incoming economic
@9t the period was persistently strong, indicatingthe rate increasesto date had yet to slow demand. More importantly, incoming
thilaEhdwedno evidence of slowing at all and was in factbecoming morewidespread, possibly even well entrenched. This
mtiferekd thad will have to takerates higherand for longer.
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The result of these developmentswere significantand widespread. Germane to Orchid Islandand levered Agency RMBS
werdlestakesin market interest rates and a widening in the spreadsthat Agency RMBS securitiestrade relativeto comparable
UnstiRasuriesor swaps. The yield onthe 10-year U.S. Treasury closed justabove 3.83%on September30, 2022, and surpassed
&stdber 0f2022. This increasewas much less than short-termrates increased. Interestrates on maturities inside one year increased
Rl over 100 basis points and by more than 160 basis points for maturities of three months or less —in each caseby the end of the
quarter. Yields of maturitiesof three or fewer months have increased by over 230 basis pointssince the end of the second quarterof
HEDUgh October26, 2022. As of September30, 2022, market pricingimplied the terminal ratefor the currentcycle would be
appyoinatabiedlate in the first quarterof 2023. As of October26, 2022, the market s pricing in a terminalrate of approximately
do¥adtime latein the secondquarter of 2023 and with the Fed Funds rate still approximately4.40% in early 2024.

Agency RMBSspreads relativeto benchmarkinterestrates increasedto levels observed in March of 2020 by the end ofthe third
quarter of2022 and have exceededthose levelsin October of 2022. Returns forthe Agency RMBS marketfor the thirdquarter of
¥ (5.40)% and thesereturns were 1.7% lower than comparableduration LIBOR swaps. The relativeperformance across the
RBEBSYuniverseis skewed in favor of higher coupon, 30-yearsecurities that are currently in productionby originators. Lower
sedipaties, especially those held in large amounts by the Fed, and which may eventuallybe sold by the Fed, have performedthe
Wiest resultsare consistentwith the relative durationof the securities,as higher coupons haveshorter durations,or less sensitivityto
movements in interestrates. Actionsby the Fed may prevent the sector from performingwell in the near term but, if the economy
dostract and enter a recession, the sector could do wellon a relativeperformance basis owingto the lack of credit exposure of
RRBEBSY This is consistentwith the sector’s history of performancein a counter-cyclicalmanner —doing well when the economy is
selitanely poorly whenthe economyis strong.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our condensedfinancial statements are preparedin accordancewith GAAP. GAAP requiresour managementto make some
and §8BJBdER e decisions and assessments. Our most criticalaccounting estimates involve decisionsand assessmentswhich could
significantlyaffect reportedassets, liabilities,revenues and expenses. There have been no changesto our criticalaccounting
ditonededan our annualreport on Form 10-K for the yearended December31, 2021.

Capital Expenditures

At September30, 2022, we had no material commitmentsfor capitalexpenditures.

Dividends

In addition to other requirementsthat mustbe satisfiedto continueto qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividends to our
stockholders of at least 90% of ourREIT taxableincome, determinedwithout regardto the deductionfor dividendspaid and
axchugingl @ajns. REITtaxable income(loss) is computed in accordancewith the Code, and can be greaterthan or lessthan our
Staeaaiadt net income (loss) computedin accordancewith GAAP. These book to tax differences primarily relate to the recognitionof
interestincome on RMBS, unrealizedgains and losses on RMBS, and the amortizationof losses on derivativeinstrumentsthat are
trefitedling hedges fortax purposes.
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We intend to pay regularmonthly dividendsto our stockholdersand have declared the followingdividends since the completion
IPOof our

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 6.975 $ 4,662
2014 10.800 22,643
2015 9.600 38,748
2016 8.400 41,388
2017 8.400 70,717
2018 5.350 55,814
2019 4.800 54,421
2020 3.950 53,570
2021 3.900 97,601
2022 -YTD 2.155 76,024
Totals $ 64.330 $ 515,588

(1) On October 12, 2022, the Company declared a dividend of $0.16 per share to be paid on November 28, 2022. The effect of this dividend is
included in the table above, but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of September 30, 2022.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKETRISK

Market risk is the exposureto loss resultingfrom changesin market factors suchas interestrates, foreigncurrency exchange
comifitgdity prices and equity prices. The primary market risksthat we are exposed to are interestrate risk, prepaymentrisk, spread
Hgkidity risk, extensionrisk and counterpartycredit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interestrate risk is highly sensitive to many factors,including governmentalmonetary and tax policies, domestic and
econpigivatidilitical considerationsand other factors beyondour control.

Changes inthe general level of interestrates canaffect our net interestincome, whichis the differencebetween theinterest
earndttOMinhterest-earningassets and the interestexpense incurredin connectionwith our interest-bearingliabilities, by affecting the
spread betweenour interest-earningassets and interest-bearingliabilities. Changes in the level of interestrates canalso affect the rate
pfepayments of our securitiesand the value of theRMBS that constitute our investmentportfolio, which affectsour net income,
#bilie @ainsfrom the sale of theseassets and ability to borrow, and the amount that we can borrow againstthese securities.

We may utilizea variety of financialinstruments in order to limit the effects of changes in interestrates on our operations. The
instiRiRsiPAMhat we useare futurescontracts, interest rate swaps and swaptions. These instrumentsare intendedto serve asan
bedeeméainst future interestrate increaseson our repurchaseagreement borrowings. Hedging techniquesare partly based on
pssumed prepayments of our AgencyRMBS. If prepaymentsare slower or faster than assumed, the life ofthe Agency RMBS willbe
longer or shorter, which would reducethe effectivenessof any hedgingstrategies we may use and may causelosses onsuch
transactions. Hedging strategiesinvolving the use of derivativesecurities are highly complex and may producevolatile returns.
Hetlgigges are also limited by the rules relating to REIT qualification. In orderto preserve our REIT status, we may be forced to
{eHRUB#EG transaction at a time when the transaction is most needed.
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Our profitabilityand the valueof our investmentportfolio (including derivatives used for hedging purposes) may be adversely
duriaffeetgeeriod as a result of changing interestrates, includingchanges in the forwardyield curve.

Our portfolioof PT RMBSis typically comprised of adjustable-rateRMBS (“ARMs”), fixed-rate RMBS and hybrid adjustable-
RMBY¢ We generally seek to acquirelow durationassets that offer high levels of protection from mortgage prepayments provided
thetrdpnablypriced by the market. Although the durationof an individualasset can change asa result of changes in interestrates,
Stfive to maintain ahedged PT RMBS portfoliowith an effectiveduration of less than2.0. The stated contractual final maturity of the
mortgage loans underlyingour portfolioof PT RMBS generally rangesup to 30 years. However, the effect of prepaymentsof the
underlying mortgage loans tendsto shorten the resultingcash flows from our investments substantially. Prepayments occur for
rveaioms, including refinancingof underlyingmortgages and loan payoffs in connection with home sales, and borrowers paying more
then scheduledloan payments, which acceleratesthe amortizationof the loans.

The durationof our 10 and 11O portfolioswill vary greatly dependingon the structural features of the securities. While
actiAtPAYIMANays affectthe cash flows associated with the securities, the interestonly natureof IOs may cause their durations to
beeemely negative whenprepayments are high, and less negativewhen prepaymentsare low. Prepayments affect the durations of
H@slarly, but the floating ratenature of the coupon of I10s (whichis inversely related to the level of one month LIBOR) causestheir
RiRements, and model duration, to be affectedby changes in both prepayments and one month LIBOR, bothcurrent andanticipated
levels. As a result,the durationof I1O securitieswill also vary greatly.

Prepayments on the loansunderlying our RMBS can alter the timing of the cash flows from the underlyingloans to us.As a
gaugeshléi@restrate sensitivity of our assetsby measuringtheir effectiveduration. While modified duration measures theprice
SMSBOHBto movementsin interestrates, effectiveduration captures both the movement in interest rates and the fact that cash flows to
#hortgagerelated securityare alteredwhen interestrates move. Accordingly, whenthe contractinterestrate on amortgage loan is
substantiallyabove prevailinginterestrates in the market, the effective duration of securitiescollateralizedby such loanscan be quite
¥ause of expected prepayments.

We face therisk that the market value of ourPT RMBS assets will increase or decrease at differentrates than that of our
RMBSusHH#Silities, including our hedginginstruments. Accordingly, we assess our interest rate risk by estimatingthe durationof our
asskthe durationof our liabilities.We generally calculate duration using variousthird party models. However, empiricalresults and
tiEdparty models may produce different durationnumbers for the same securities.

The followingsensitivity analysis shows the estimated impact on the fair value of ourinterest rate-sensitiveinvestments and
posifiedas of September30, 2022 and December3 1, 2021, assuming ratesinstantaneously fall 200 bps, fall 100 bps, fall 50 bps, rise
BPs, rise 100 bps and rise 200 bps, adjustedto reflect the impact of convexity, whichis the measureof the sensitivity of our hedge
positions and Agency RMBS’ effectiveduration to movementsin interestrates. We have a negativelyconvex assetprofile anda
LIngRIs positivelyconvex hedgeportfolio (short positions).It is notuncommon forus to have losses inboth directions.

All changes in value inthe table below are measured as percentagechanges fromthe investmentportfolio value and net asset
at théabuSe interest rate scenario. The base interestrate scenarioassumes interestrates and prepayment projections as of September
3022 and December 31, 2021.

Actual resultscould differ materially from estimates,especially in the currentmarket environment.To the extent that these
or ofiséimedasptions do not holdtrue, whichis likely ina period of high pricevolatility, actual results willlikely differ materially
pi@fections and could be larger or smaller than the estimates in the tablebelow. Moreover, if different models wereemployed in the
analysis, materially different projectionscould result. Lastly, while the table below reflectsthe estimatedimpact ofinterest rate
sl ehs@easeson a static portfolio, we may fromtime to timesell any of our agency securities as a part of the overallmanagement of
restment portfolio.
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Interest Rate Sensitivify

Portfolio
Market Book

Change in Interest Rate Valué?® Valué?@
As of September 30, 2022
-200 Basis Points 0.23% 1.87%
-100 Basis Points 0.54% 4.32%
-50 Basis Points 0.38% 3.04%
+50 Basis Points 0.47)% (3.73)%
+100 Basis Points (1.00)% (8.01)%
+200 Basis Points (2.18)% (17.46)%
As of December 31, 2021
-200 Basis Points (2.01)% (17.00)%
-100 Basis Points (0.33)% (2.76)%
-50 Basis Points 0.19% 1.59%
+50 Basis Points (0.48)% (4.04)%
+100 Basis Points (1.64)% (13.91)%
+200 Basis Points (4.79)% (40.64)%

(1) Interest ratesensitivity isderived from modelsthat are dependenton inputs andassumptions providedby third partiesas well as by our
Managgrassumes there are no changes in mortgage spreadsand assumes astatic portfolio. Actual resultscould differ materially fromthese

(2) dsichoakestheeffect of derivativesand other securitiesused for hedgingpurposes.

(3) Estimated dollarchange in investmentportfolio valueexpressed as a percent of the total fair value ofour investmentportfolio asof such date.
(4) Estimated dollarchange in portfoliovalue expressedas a percentof stockholders'equity as of such date.

In addition to changes in interestrates, otherfactors impactthe fair value of ourinterest rate-sensitiveinvestments,such as the
of tithgpeld curve, marketexpectationsas to futureinterestrate changesand other market conditions.Accordingly, inthe event of
phaggesl interestrates, the change in the fair value of ourassets wouldlikely differ from that shown above and such differencemight
hfaterial andadverse to our stockholders.

Prepayment Risk

Because residentialborrowers have the option to prepay theirmortgage loans at parat any time, we face therisk that we will
experience a return of principalon our investmentsfaster thananticipated. Various factors affect the rate at whichmortgage
PERREYMENIding changes in the level of and directionaltrends in housing prices, interest rates, generaleconomic conditions,loan age
8¢, loan-to-valueratio, the location of the propertyand social and demographicconditions. Additionally, changesto government
sponsored entity underwritingpractices or other governmental programs could also significantlyimpact prepaymentrates or
GG Srepaymentson Agency RMBS increaseduring periodsof falling mortgage interest rates and decrease during periodsof
AifdAgage interest rates. However, this may notalways be the case. We may reinvestprincipal repayments at a yield that is loweror
higher than the yield on the repaidinvestment, thus affectingour net interestincome by alteringthe average yield on ourassets.

Spread Risk

When the market spreadwidens betweenthe yield on our Agency RMBS and benchmark interestrates, our net book value could
decline ifthe value of our AgencyRMBS falls by more thanthe offsettingfair value increases on our hedginginstruments tied to the
underlying benchmark interestrates. We refer to this as "spreadrisk” or "basisrisk." The spread risk associated with our mortgage
assbthe resulting fluctuationsin fair value of thesesecurities can occur independent of changes in benchmarkinterest rates and may
t6lather factors impactingthe mortgageand fixed income markets,such as actualor anticipatedmonetary policy actionsby the Fed,
market liquidity, or changes in requiredrates of return on different assets. Consequently, whilewe use futurescontracts and interest
E#¥@ps and swaptions to attemptto protect against movesin interestrates, such instrumentstypically will not protect ournet book
yghifst spreadrisk.
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Liquidity Risk

The primary liquidity risk forus arises from financinglong-term assets with shorter-termborrowings through repurchase
Our 225e¢81RRtsare pledged to secure repurchaseagreements are Agency RMBS and cash. As of September 30, 2022, we had
unrestrictedcash and cashequivalentsof $214.2 million and unpledged securities of approximately $5.4 million (not including
vasetitiash purchases or securitiespledged tous) availableto meet margin calls on our repurchaseagreements and derivativecontracts,
and for othercorporate purposes. However,should the value of our Agency RMBSpledged as collateral or the valueof our
ilesinativats suddenly decrease,margin callsrelating to our repurchaseand derivativeagreements could increase, causing an adverse
change in our liquidityposition. Further, there is no assurancethat we willalways be able to renew (or roll) our repurchase
adaeiBeSariBounterpartieshave the option to increase ourhaircuts (marginrequirements)on the assetswe pledge against repurchase
agreements, thereby reducingthe amount that can be borrowedagainst an asset even if they agreeto renew or roll the repurchase
agreement. Significantlyhigher haircutscan reduce our ability to leverage our portfolioor even forceus to sell assets, especiallyif
correlated with asset price declinesor faster prepayment rates on our assets.

Extension Risk

The projectedweighted average lifeand the duration(or interestrate sensitivity)of our investmentsis based on our Manager's
assumptions regarding the rate at which the borrowerswill prepay the underlyingmortgage loans. In general, we use futurescontracts
adrest rate swaps and swaptionsto help manageour funding cost on our investments in the eventthat interestrates rise. These
hedgimgents allow us to reduce our funding exposure on the notionalamount of the instrumentfor a specifiedperiod of time.

However, if prepaymentrates decreasein a rising interest rate environment, the average life or duration of our fixed-rateassets or
fixedb@te portion ofthe ARMs or other assetsgenerally extends. This could have a negativeimpact on our results from operations, as
RBlging instrumentexpirationsare fixed and will, therefore, cover a smallerpercentage of our fundingexposure on our mortgage
fssadstkent that theiraverage livesincrease dueto slower prepayments. This situationmay also cause the market valueof our Agency
RMBS and CMOs collateralizedby fixed ratemortgages or hybrid ARMs to declineby more thanotherwise would be the case while
BR$tr hedging instruments would notreceive any incremental offsetting gains. In extreme situations,we may be forced to sell assets
fRaintain adequateliquidity, which could cause us to incurrealized losses.

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposedto counterparty credit risk relating to potentiallosses that could be recognizedin the eventthat the counterparties
our f@purchaseagreements and derivativecontracts fail to performtheir obligationsunder such agreements. The amount of assets we
pledge as collateral in accordancewith our agreements varies over time based on the marketvalue and notional amountof such assets
#ell as the value of ourderivative contracts. In the eventof a defaultby a counterparty, we may notreceive paymentsprovided for
thwlesrms of our agreementsand may havedifficulty obtainingour assets pledged as collateral under such agreements. Our credit risk
related to certain derivativetransactionsis largely mitigated through daily adjustmentsto collateralpledged basedon changesin
mikeind we limit our counterpartiesto registeredcentral clearingexchanges and major financial institutions with acceptablecredit
rbAEsring positions with individual counterpartiesand adjustingcollateral posted as required. However, there is no guaranteeour
edlarinage counterparty credit risk will be successfuland we couldsuffer significantlosses ifunsuccessful.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period coveredby this report(the “evaluationdate™), we carried outan evaluation,under the supervision and
the pattficipationof our management,including our Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”), of
#feectiveness of the designand operationof our disclosurecontrols and procedures, as definedin Rule 13a-15(e)under the Exchange
Bsded on this evaluation,the CEO and CFO concludedour disclosurecontrols andprocedures,as designed and implemented, were
effective as of the evaluationdate (1) in ensuring that informationregarding the Companyis accumulatedand communicatedto our
management, including our CEO and CFO, by our employees,as appropriateto allow timely decisionsregarding required disclosure
@in providingreasonable assurance that informationwe must disclosein our periodicreports under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periodsprescribed by the SEC’srules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no significantchanges inthe Company’sinternal control over financialreporting that occurredduring the Company’s
receRidical quarter thathave materiallyaffected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over

fepaneing.

54



PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material pending legal proceedings as described in Item 103 of Regulation S-K.
ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS

A description of certain factors that may affect our future results and risk factors s set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-
the YedPended December 31, 2021. As of September 30, 2022, there have been no material changes in our risk factors from those
$6tth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTEREDSALES OF EQUITY SECURITIESAND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company did not have any unregistered sales of its equity securities during the three months ended September 30, 2022.

The table below presents the Company’s share repurchase activity for the three months ended September 30, 2022.

Shares Purchased Maximum Number
Total Number Weighted-Average as Part of Publicly of Shares That May Yet
of Shares Price Paid Announced Be Repurchased Under
Repurchased’ Per Share Programs the Authorizatiéh
July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 - S = - 3,364,601
August 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022 - - - 3,364,601
September 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022 186,249 12.73 175,000 3,189,601
Totals / Weighted Average 186,249 § 12.73 175,000 3,189,601

(1) Includes 452shares of the Company’s commonstock acquiredby the Companyin connection with the satisfactionof tax withholding
obdigatignploymentrelated awardsunder equityincentive plansand cash paidfor 10,796.6 fractional sharesas a result of the Company’s 1-for-
feverse stocksplit effectedon August 30,2022. These repurchasesdo not reducethe number of shares availableunder the stockrepurchase

program authorization.
(2) On October 12, 2022, the Board of Directorsapproved an increasein the number of shares ofthe Company’s common stock available in the
sépilechase program for up to an additional4,300,000 shares. The effect of thisincrease innot reflectedin the table.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIORSECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETYDISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.

3.1

32

33

34

4.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

Registration Statement on AmendmentNo. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538)filed on November28,
2012 and incorporatedherein by reference).
Articles of Amendmentto the Articlesof Amendmentand Restatementof the Company(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to

Form 10-K filed on February22, 2019 and incorporatedherein by reference).

Amended andRestated Bylaws of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit3.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2019 and incorporatedherein by reference).

Specimen Certificate of common stock of OrchidlIsland Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on AmendmentNo. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538)filed on November28§,
2012 and incorporatedherein by reference).

Certificationof Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant,pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certificationof George H. Haas, IV, Chief Financial Officer ofthe Registrant, pursuantto Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certificationof Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant,pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section1350 as adoptedpursuantto Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
Certificationof George H. Haas, IV, Chief Financial Officer ofthe Registrant, pursuantto 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adoptedpursuantto Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL  Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the

Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.***

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Schema Document ***

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document™®**

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Created™***
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
* Filed herewith.
*x Furnished herewith.
skeskok

Submitted electronically herewith.
Management contract or compensatoryplan.
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Signatures

Pursuantto the requirementsof Section 13 or 15(d)of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,as amended, the registranthas duly
daigseshort to be signedon its behalfby the undersigned,thereunto duly authorized.

Orchid Island Capital, Inc
Registrant

Date:  October 28, 2022 By: /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:  October 28, 2022 By: /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and
Director (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:
1. T'have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2022

/s/ Robert E. Cauley

Robert E. Cauley

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, George H. Haas, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.



Date: October 28, 2022

/s/ George H. Haas, IV

George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended
September 30, 2022 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the "Report”),
I, Robert E. Cauley, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

October 28, 2022 /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended
September 30, 2022 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the "Report™),
I, George H. Haas, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

October 28, 2022 /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer







